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Message
from Chairman

In the year of 2009, Group Lease Public Co.,Ltd. ("GL”) with the core business of motor-
cycle hire-purchasing for over 20 years, has consistently had excellent performance. Thereby,
it is mainly derived from major shareholders financial support, GL’s staff contribution together
with GL's executives vision in manage company’s fairly direction and carrying its existing poten-
tials as the highest efficiency by closely focusing on debts collection in avoidance of relevant
risks. This GL's excellent performance is also come from the proper strategy market manage-
ment, together with the great supporting from strategic partners including but not limited to
financial institutions and all counterparties. All of these cause GL’s achievement throughout
the year 2009. GL is ranked in the top 5 for the Bangkok Metropolitan and the neighboring

provinces in terms of market share in this business.

In additions, GL has concerned in social responsibilities by realization in the significant of
local valuable treasury for the youth as virtual of the nation’s future, therefore, the collaboration
between GL, A.P.F group as major shareholding group, The ond Army Area of Royal Thai Army
and Bunditpatanasilpa Institute of Ministry of Culture established the project of “Thai-Japanese
Preserving Isan Mural Heritage” (Hoob Tam) at Wat Na Pra Tat, Nakornratchasima Province in
November 2009. This project aimed in the reinforcement and preservation “ Hoob Tam ” which
known as the traditional wall portraites in descending from our today society.  The project was

very much successful in the part of culture exchanged between Thai and Japanese.

Among the recent of world economic crisis inclusive Thailand internal problems both in
economics and politics, GL with the emphasized in the strengthening enhancements and
increasing in the value add of our services in which would lead to the sustainable develoment in
order to bring the beneficence to all company’s shareholders. By this occesion, we would also
like to thanks our clients, suppliers, dealers, GL's staff and all shareholders who have supported
us in the past til now, and we look forword to you continued support, trust and well wishes in the

future and fore the last long.
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Report of
The audit Committee

The audit committee of Group Lease Public Company Limited comprises of three independent directors
including Mr. Chatchai Chotanakarn, President of Audit Committee, Mr. Satit Rungkasiri and Ms. Jaranya Sang-
sukdee as the committee member. In 2009, the Audit Committee had conducted the meeting with management
and internal auditors 4 times, the opinions are as follows :

Financial Statement after considered the verificationof quarterly and annually financial statements together

with the management and the accounting auditors, The audit committee found that the financial statements

have been done correctly according to the general accounting principles, complete and have creditability.

Internal Control System the company hired Tax Specialist Co., Ltd. to proceed the nternal auditing and
reported directly to the audit committee and found that the internal control system is adequate, has transpar-

ent process which able to inspect. The audit commitee has good cooperation from all relevant departments.

Laws and Regulations the company strictly follows all the SEC’s and SET'’s laws and regulations and other

laws and regulations relevant to the Company’s business.

The Auditor Ernst & Young office limited is the company accounting auditor for the year 2009 which was the
third year continuously from last year. The auditing is in accordance with the appropriate accounting stadard

and the remuneration is reasonable.
Transactions that may cause conflicts of interest The audit committee considered that related transactions
were reasonably, justifiably and for the benefit of the company, accord with the rule of the Stock Exchange

of Thailand.

The attendance of each audit committee on the audit committee meeting

Name Board of Director Meeting Audit Committee Meeting
Mr. Chatchai Chotanakarn 11/12 4/4
Mr. Satit Rungkasiri 712 0/4
Ms. Jaranay Sangsukdee 1012 4/4

Overall, as the audit committee performed its duties, the company has effcient management, transparent and
easy to inspect on every process with the data details recording in the same line which each department can share.
The audit committee support the company to comply with the good corporate governance guideline by SET  (the
report of CG is presented in this annual report) and also give advice, notice and improvement guideline for the

company'’s highest benefits.
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Message from Managing Director
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From the global economic crisis which significantly impact from the end of the 4th quarter of the year 2008 continuous seriously to
the 1%' and the 2™ quarter of the year 20009. Recovery start in the 4" quarter of the year 2009 resulting overall Thailand GDP
decreased only 2.3.  Fortunately, global economy recover faster than expected. Make our exports improved in the 2nd and Srd
quarter of the year 2009 resulted in declining of unemployment rate as well as higher agriculture prices which resulted in higher
agriculturist revenue. Also better political situation, make foreign tourists to visit Thailand more. Faster recovery of global economy,
this resulted in Group Lease Public Co., Ltd. to have better operating result than expected. Because we have prepared for the
situation since 2008 such as financial risk management, working system development to increase operational efficiency, etc.  So
when the economy improved, our operating result is satisfactor.

For the year 2010, GL will focus on expanding business in the up-country, especially in east and upper north-east to more than 40%
of the portfolio. All employees and management are committee to maintain the value of the company for all stakeholders, particularly
shareholders.

Finally, | would like to say thank you to our partners who always support our business, to the management team and every staff for
their best effort, to the board of directors and audit committee who focus on the business transparency which assure the stability
for business operation to sustain the highest benefit for the staff and all of shareholders.
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General Information
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Registration Number
Core Business
Location

Registered Capital
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Type of Share
Home Page
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Group Lease Public Company Limited.

0107537000327 (old number Bor Mor Jor. 279)

Hire purchase financing of motorcycles.

63 Soi 1 Thetsabannimitrtai Road,Ladyao, Chatuchak,

Bangkok 10900.

399,000,000 baht.

280,839,450 baht.

56,167,890 Ordinary shares at par value of 5.00 baht per share.

www.grouplease.co.th

glpcl@grouplease.co.th
0-2580-7555
0-2954-2902-3

Corporations in which Group Lease PCL holds more than 10% of shares

- None -
References
Securities
Share Registrar

Auditor

Legal Advisor

Common Stock

: Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.

62 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building 4,6-7th Floor,
Rachadapisek Road, Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110.

Tel : 0-2229-2800 or 0-2654-5599 Fax : 0-2359-1259

Call center : 0-2229-2888

Website : http://www.tsd.co.th

Ms.Rungnapa Lertsuwankul Certified Public Account No. 3516
Ernst & Young Office Limited

33rd Floor, Lake Rajada Office

Complex 193/136-137 Rajadapisek Road Klongtoey,

Bangkok 10110 Tel. 0-2264-0777 Fax 0-2661-9192

Email Address : ernstyound.thailand@th.ey.com

Mr. Kaptan Jeerasete
63 Soi 1 Thetsabannimitrtai Road, Ladyao, Chatuchak,
Bangkok 10900. Tel. 0-2580-7555, Fax. 0-2954-2902-3
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Summary of the Financial Position and Operating Results
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Profitability Ratio

daseanidasy (%)

Yield Rate 36.81 38.55 39.81 39.75
daseanidaang (%)

Interest Rate 6.81 6.59 6.92 7.58
srussdnsaands (%)

Net Yield Rate 30.00 31.96 32.89 32.17
d051A1l5gna (%)

Net Profit Rate 22.64 24.56 19.81 18.24
desuanauwnugiaiu (%)

Return on Equity 21.58 27.72 21.20 18.37

aasrdrunaavilsedndnrnlunisaiiuviy

Efficiency Ratio

dasHanauLnuAINnIuUNIwe (%)

Return on Total Assets 8.35 9.47 7.93 7.20
aasnsuNURaIRUNIWE (11in)

Total Assets Turn Over Ratio (Times) 0.37 0.39 0.40 0.39

BAT1AIUTATIZH U TEILIEIN TG Y

Financial Policy Ratio
Sasdrunilausadiugdaiu (win)
Ratio of Liability to Equity (times) 1.26 1.98 1.86 1.45

dandiudulvideaaiug (win)
Ratio of Total Receivable to Loan from (times) 1.62 1.52 1.59 1.60
dasnsanaduiluna (%)
Dividend Rate 69.77 7.35 75.41 N.A.

BO51AIUAUAINTUNTWE
Asset Quality Ratio

dansdrudnfanizoduazgaysaduiiianu (%)
Ratio of Allowance for Doubtful Debt to Total

Receivable 8.92 5.96 5.22 7.81
danahunilgudaduitiany (%)
Ratio of Bad Debt to Total Receivable 3.42 2.13 3.10 4.63

dansdrudulidudadivgesuinalédsaduitiany (%)
Ratio of Non performing loan to Total Receivable 4.37 3.91 3.03 5.38
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Company Back Ground

Group Lease Public Company Limited
1986 with
registered capital of 1 million baht by the

was established on May 6,

Luaengrungsi family, and started business
in the hire purchase finance of motor cars in
Bangkok and upcountry. During the year
ending 1989 to the beginning of 1990, Mr.
Khanchai Boonpan and Mr. Anurak
Inthraphuvasak purchased the entity old
invited Mr. Samart

shareholders, and

Chiradamrong, who had many vyears
experience in hire purchase business, to run
the business in the position of Managing
Director. The company increase capital
continuously from 1 million baht to 399
million baht on December 31, 2008.

In 1990,

purchase business continued to experience

the motorcycles hire
rapid growth. The company had completed
personnel, capacity, experience, and skills in
the business for more than 10 years. The
company started to expand towards
motorcycles hire purchase and decreased
focus on motor car hire purchase business.
It also expanded business interests to hire
purchasing of trucks, machinery and
printing presses, meanwhile also expanding
the business to financial lease, factoring
contracts, asset financing and personal
loans. Since 2004, the core business of the
company has been only motorcycles hire

purchase.
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Asia Pte. Ltd.
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In 2007, the company had a
significant change in the major shareholder
part. From the end of 2006 until the
beginning of 2007, The group of major
shareholders sold shares to  APF
Management Co., Ltd.* after that APF
Management Co., Ltd. become the

company’s major shareholder, now holding
45.10 million shares or 83.52%

issued and paid-up capital.

of total

In 2009, The company business
expansion slow down due to the world
but the
profitability by focusing on the quality of

economic  crisis can keep
account receivable and concern to the credit
approval process. The company is still one
of the big motorcycle hire-purchase service

provider in Bangkok and Vicinity area.

*the company in the same group is Engine Holdings
Asia Pte. Ltd.
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Overview of the Company's Business

In 2009, the hire

purchase was the main business of the

motorcycle

company. The motorcycle price for financing
is about 45,000 baht each, with the well
known brands such as Honda, Yamaha,
Suzuki and Kawasaki. The highest financing
price of motorcycles is no more than 69,000
baht each. in hire
the

company offers other after sales service,

Besides services
purchase financing of motorcycles,
such as service of annual vehicle tax

extension and insurance, to add more
channels to the company's revenues and to
protect risk for the assets which is the

collateral for hire purchase.
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TAs9as1s el aavusn

Structure of the Company’s Revenue

2552 2551 2550
s1e'ldaa9us N 2009 2008 2007

The Company’s Revenue wWuLn Sauaz WuLIn Sauay WuLIn fauaz
(000) | (%) | cooo) | (%) | (ooo) (%)

se'ldnannatindawarunanauiise 742.16 92.75 695.32 92.96 492.82 90.91
Hire Purchase and Asset Financing
s1e'ldau 58.05 7.25 52.66 7.04 49.26 9.09

Other Incomes

800.21 542.08 | 100.00

ANNTAS LAY

Competition Situation

units

500000 -

421,111
399,845

400000 - 366,290 371,491

329,476

300000 -

200000 -

100000 -

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

year
Motorcycle Registed in Bangkok
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The unit sales of motorcycle has
direct impact to motorcycle hire purchase
business. In Bangkok and the vicinity, the
heavy traffic situation means a motorcycle
is still the vehicle that can deliver
convenience and speed. As long as the
Mass Transit Organization System is
unable to serve citizen's need, using a
motorcycle is certain a good choice for
traveling or running businesses. By using
a high technology, modern and beautiful
designs, and compatible and convenience
of motorcycle, such as automatic
transmission, could get a good response
from consumers. Those aspects increase a
trend of using motorcycle and make the
motorcycle  leasing  industry  more
attractive for investment. It's noticeable
that new entrepreneurs coming into this
industry are rising. It also

results in higher competition.

In 2009 number of motorcycles
registered in Bangkok and Vicinity area
329,476 units, decreasing 11.31% from
371,491 units of the year 2008. For the
year 2010 motorcycles industry has
tendency to recover in accordance with
the recovery of overall economic situation
and from the government's economic
stimulant policy. Anyway speed and ratio
of recovery is hard to predict but shall be

better than the last year.
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Risks of external sources of funding

To operate hire-purchase business
continuously need adequate source of fund.
Now the company’s major source of fund
come from 2 sources : bank loan and cash
flow from operation.
2009 the bank loan balance is 1,062.19

million Baht comprise of a bank overdraft

On December 31,

and promissory notes amount 25.35 million
Baht and long term loan amount 1,036.84
million Baht. The long-term credit facilities
of the company which have not yet drawn
down amounted to 70 million Baht.

From the past, the company mainly
used loan from the bank and has a very
good repayment record and also able to
conduct the conditions of the facility
contracts such as to maintain the debt to
equity ratio and to maintain hire — purchase
receivable to loan ratio so that the company
can reduce risk from the lack of external

sources of fund.
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Risks of loan interest rates

The majority of the company's

revenue comes from motorcycle hire
purchase financing. Changing in the interest
rates will directly affect the company's
profitability : the net yield rate come from
hire purchase receivable yield rate deduct
cost loan interest rate. If loan interest rate
rise, the cost of funding will be increased
while hire purchase interest rates are fixed
for the period of hire purchase contract. So
to reduce risk from the increasing of
interest rate, the company had signed
interest rate swap contract for some parts
of loan to fix the interest rate at 6.60 — 6.85

annually.

Risks on the mismatch between the
term of the sources of fund and hire
purchase contract

Normally the hire  purchase
installment periods are varied from 6-48
months (average is 27 months) so the
company has policy to determine the
repayment period for long term facility
agreement from financial institute to match
the installment period for liquidity of
business operation. The company estimate
cash flow cover hire purchase receivable
growth, to analyze and evaluate liquidity in
order to plan for the financial support,
accord with the hire purchase contract
the business

conditions  for smooth

operation.



ANULRevANnNIsALtTIvI I UNNaTiLAG

fudianlinatiftiasale

fIaqtfunisafiugsAaln

suttaiihdasadnsenuaudiulifidaiidaann
wiiaula 9 2asnady wasiilugsAai'liag
maldnguanafiday  dgotiulunisuanagsia
2a9§sznaunisnanalugsiaduitiainda
sadnsenuaudIsanusavinldadnoi oy
dnaawrasudniae  gsfafifefimnudag
nndudiaibinaliiangldunuaniny
suiipseiolunmsiatsanaydfduta  vdaza
sTuunIsAILANAE UG

atnv'lsAmuus¥nlaninualiinig
Asaduiiiaatrodineianndunausiute
Wianuddyduaaainaadduidataans
AslAFaUdtayauaIxNAI NE1IAALTEN LA
WelulsguugIudayauadganAaluinnin
410,000 s1an15 wastdusgurdnuaudsn
fayalAsfnuneand 3140 way aunauida
sadnsenuausduvlszindalneg vinlvusdn
grunsandunsadnaaIngnuilldaclef
Uszndnineransasadauiseifinisnse
uilangrudayafosuunas Tae o Judl 31
gFureu 2552 wEniduitailinalviie
se'liiudiuiu 101.59 sruundailusasnay
4.87 vasduittarfonua TaadiauFauiauduy
suittarilinalvidnsels an Jui 31 funeu
2551 dawindusanay 3.91 vasduiiiaioviua
wudasadiuduidailinalviiasa'ldsa
suittasiuiinduludansasay 0.96 Tunaei
visniinsdeaflaniisodaarge o Yuii 31
sudAN 2552 uay 31 sudau 2551 windu
186.30 aruu v wag 135.16 aruun

auagusadailudasdiudfantsodeay

18

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 : GROUP LEASE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Risks on the operation which may lead

non performing loans

At present the hire purchase of
motorcycles is not limited by rules or special
laws from the Government.
the
motorcycles business can expand their

Therefore,
companies in hire  purchase of
business, limited only by their own capacity.
However, the risk will occur in the credit
if there

internal control systems.

approval process is not good

Anyway the company is strictly
consider on every approval process and
concern to the credit quality by checking
data from the company's customer base
more than 410,000 persons and as in a
member of The National Credit Bureau
Company Limited and also as a member of
Motorcycle Hire-Purchase Association of
Thailand , so the company can screen the
customer credit effectively from these 3
On December 31, 2009 the
company has non performing loan amount
101.59 million Baht or 4.87%
receivable compare to the non performing
loan on December 31, 2008 which is 3.91%

of total receivable so NPL rate increased

data sources.

of total

0.96% while the company has allowance for
doubtful debt on December 31, 2009 and
2009 at amount 186.30 and 135.16 million
Baht respectively or Ratio of Allowance for
Doubtful Debt to Total Receivable at 8.92
and 5.96.
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Risks on losses on sales of

repossessed motorcycles

The company will repossess the
motorcycles if the customer did not pay
the hire
agreement. The motorcycles will be sold by

installment as in purchase
auction to the used motorcycle dealers in
Bangkok and upcountry and also other
interested parties. The net receivable of
each motorcycle generally higher than the
price of repossessed motorcycle so if the
company cannot reclaim that loss from
debtor or guarantor, that will record a loss
on the sale of repossessed motorcycles.

Anyway, to prevent that risk, the
company determine the guide line and the
system to consider the credit approval from
the beginning with company database,
Credit (NCB)

Motorcycle Hire-Purchase Association.

and
The

company also develop collection service to

National Bureau

prevent and increasing of the amount of

repossess motorcycle from  business

expansion.
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Risks on the influence of the major

shareholder to business management

A.P.F Management, the company's
major shareholder and Engine Inc. which is
the same company group (“"APF group
shareholder”) as at November 27, 2009
holding of 45,216,002 shares or 80.50% of
registered capital and completely paid-up of
56,167,890 shares which over 75% of total
shares so the left shareholder cannot object
the resolution in case of some agendas
which significant votes must be three of
four votes from the shareholders' meeting.
So other shareholders may not collect the

votes to inspect and balance efficiently.

Risks on new entrants and competition
in the hire purchase finance of

motorcycles

To operate motorcycle hire purchase
business, it is not necessary to invest in
many materials or tools. To enter the
business need just only source of fund for
hire purchase financing. Anyway key of
success factors are not only the source of
fund but also need some expertise such as
credit quality evaluation and collection
follow-up. Many competitors failed for this

business with lacking of these capacities.
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Motorcycle dealers are important advisors to
induce clients to use hire purchase services.
Therefore, there is a risk if dealers do not
So the
company must have fast process on credit

suggest our services to customers.

analysis and approval, with the information
technology which support operation and the
experienced human resources who have
expertise in the business. The company can
approve credit within an hour, which satisfy
dealers' needs. Besides, with the self
information technology development accord
with the business and personal expertise,
the the

customers and dealers with the fast service

company can also provide

on balance checking for the closing account.
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Tasvasvrhatiunazn1sinnis

Structure of Capital and Management

Whayu
Shareholders

safiagdaviulugl 10 ;ausn au Jufl 27 waadnnau 2552

Top ten of shareholders as at November 27, 2009

A . v s g Aalfludnsruua
shediagfiaiu NWURUNDa (KU) 2. . e v
RuUNInNm (3aaay)
Shareholders’ Name Amount of Shares PETEL O]
Total Share
1 Engine Holdings Asia Pte. Ltd. 26,906,560 47.90%
2 uaEw aALen. wuuauiud [Ande 18,309,442 32.60%

A.P.F. Management Company Limited

3 e &unea 526199 5,380,219 9.58%
Mr. Samart Chiradamrong

4  ue Juad gaswsde 1,670,000 2.97%
Mr.  Somyod Suteerapornchai

5  uw e 1 a9idns 1,162,500 2.07%

Mrs. Viroonsri Taifayongvichit

6 uw  1hym FAwox 609,200 1.08%
Mrs. Buaboocha Rakpong

7w auysal Aunas 240,000 0.43%
Mrs. Somboon  Puenthong

8 g NEe YIWIIA 211,300 0.38%
Mr.  Pichit Burapawong

9 wuw 795N Tualazavd 150,070 0.27%
Mrs. Wanna Laicharoenwong

DBS VICKERS SECURITIES
10  (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD 150,000 0.27%

54,789,591 97.54%
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ANSINNS

Management

AMZATTNNTUIEN
Board of Directors

AENIINATTATIAFAL
Audit Committee

AS5NANSKHANNNS
Managing Director grfnanagauaalu
Internal Audit

dhoduittauazniseann dheadaisiantfy daffgyfuaznsiu fhayaratazgasnis dhammaTuladigsgumna fheljicnag
Credit & Marketing Dept Collection Dept. Financial & Accounting Admin & Personnel Information Tech. Dept. Operation Dept.

I_I_I

&IUNTARA frududa
Marketing Credit

Division Division

HITA3IRSIVAIANT

Organization Char
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Group Lease Public Company Limited management's structure consists of two directors'

group; the company's Board of Directors and the Audit committee. The management structure

consists of two groups of committee which are the Directors committee and the Audit

committee.

Company's Board of Directors' structure

As at 31 December 2009, the company's Board of Directors of 8 directors was as follows

Directors’ Name

Position

Representative of

1. Mr.

Mitsuji Konoshita

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Shareholder (APF Management)

2. Mr.

Samart Chiradamrong

Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors and Managing Director

Shareholder & Management

Shareholder (Engine Holdings

3. Mr. Muneo Tashiro Director Asia Pte.Ltd.)
3. Mr. Surasak Khemthongkum Director Management
4. Mr. Deepong Sahachartsiri Director Shareholder (APF Management)

5. Mr.

Chatchai Chotanakarn

Chairman of the Audit committee
and Independent Director

. Satit Rungkasiri

Audit Committee /Independent
Director

. Jaranya Sangsukdee

Audit Committee /Independent
Director

Secretaries to the Board of Directors are

1. Mrs. Wanna Laicharoenwong Secretary of the Board of Directors and the company's

secretary

2. Ms. Watcharaporn Meruthong Assistant secretary of the Board of Directors

Authorized directors

The directors who have authority to sign in the name of the company are Mr.

Samart Chiradamrong or Mr. Deepong Sahachartsiri or Mr. Surasak Khemthongkum,

two of these three signature together with the company's logo.

The authority of legal accuse, to force, to against the law, to proceed in any civil

suit/criminal case, to report/cancel adversity to police, to file a suit in proceed the

bankrupt cases. Furthermore that authority which include calling back, confiscating the

company's asset, and cash from debtors, personnel, appoint Mr. Samart Chiradamrong

as Vice Chairman

of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Mr. Deepong Sahachartsiri as

Director or Mr. Wanchai Boontham toggther with the company's logo to sign.
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Responsibilities of Directors

Directors take responsibility in managing the company's operation according to
legal, company objectives, its regulations and resolutions of shareholders' minutes with
loyalty and carefulness , which can be concluded as following :

1. To arrange the shareholder meeting within four months after closing the
accounting period.

2. To arrange the Board of Directors meeting quarterly.

3. To present financial statements, both balance sheets and income statements,
which have already been examined by external auditor to shareholders for

approval.

4. To appoint a proxy Managing Director who manages under the Board of
Directors' control. The Board of Directors to appoint a proxy to function, or to
have specific authorization under Board of Directors' agreement at specific of
period. However the Board of Directors can cancel, withdraw, or change the
given authorization. Appointing a proxy, who must manage instead of Board of
Directors, should be agreed by the Board of Directors' minutes. Furthermore
there should have independence directors and Audit committee involved in
those minutes. If any director contradicts a proxy, the minutes should clearly

recorded that incident.

5. To set up the targets, direction, policy, plan, and the company's budget, and
to control and supervise management systems to reach the policy. Except the
subjects which need the approval of shareholders, such as legal regulations
increasing or decreasing capital, sale/purchase or transferring entity, and

correcting the company's prospectus.

6. Furthermore, directors have responsibility to control the company operate
under the Securities and Exchange Act and the Stock Exchange of Thailand's
rules such as transactions concerning related companies and the sale or

purchase of relevant assets.

7. To generate management structure such as appointing a management
committee, Managing Director, general managers and other committee

appropriately.

8. To follow the performance of operation, and whether it complies with plan and
budgeting.
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9. Directors cannot operate or be partner in any business which is in the same
business of the company, or that business is the company's competitor
whether that benefit is belong to himself or others. The exception is when that

action is informed in a shareholders' meeting before appointment.

10. Directors have to inform the company promptly if he is involved directly or
indirectly in any benefit which comes from the company's contract, including

increasing and decreasing of capital/debenture of a director.

However that above authorization doesn't include the authorization in approving
the transactions which cause conflict of interest to the company's advantage. This limitation
complies to the Stock Exchange of Thailand's rules, the approval of such transactions has to be
resolved in Board of Directors of shareholder, according to the company's regulation or related

law.
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Audit Committee

As of December 31, 2009 there were three independent directors in the Audit committee

as follows

Audit Committee Position

1. | Mr. Chatchai  Chotanakarn | Chairman of the Audit committee and Independent Director

2. | Mr. Satit Rungkasiri Audit Committee and Independent Director

3. | Ms. Jaranya Sangsukdee | Audit Committee and Independent Director

Responsibility of the Audit Committee

The Audit committee takes responsibity, subject to Board of Directors, and

reports directly to the Board of Directors as follows

1. Oversee the reporting process and the disclosure of the financial information that

it should be correct, sufficient and accurate.

2. Oversee to ensure that the Company has a suitable and effective internal control
and internal audit systems., to ensure the independence of the internal audit
department. The audit committee shall approve any selection, rotation or
termination of the department heads of the internal audit department or any
other departments responsible for the internal audit system of the Company.

3. Ensure that the Company follows all the SEC’s and SET’s laws and regulations
and other laws and regulations relevant to the Company’s business

4. Consider, select, and recommend the Company’s auditor and its remuneration.
Have a meeting with the external auditor at least once a year, without the

management team being present.

5. Ensure that the firm complies all related rules when there is a connected
transaction or transaction that may lead to conflict of interests.
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6. Ensure full coverage of the audit committee’s monitoring activities. The report
must be signed by the Chairman of Audit Committee and disclosed in the annual

report. The report should include the following :

Comment on accurateness, completeness and credibility of the Company’s
financial report.

Comment on an adequacy of the firm’s internal control system.

Comment on the Company’s compliance with SEC’s and SET’s laws and regulation
and other laws relevant to the Company’s business.

Comment on suitability of the external auditor.

Comment on transactions that may cause conflicts of interest.

Number of meetings of the audit committee, and attendance of each member.
Comment on other concerns that have arisen as the audit committee performed
its duties as defined in committee’s charter.

Any other transactions that all shareholders and general investors should know
under the scope of duties and responsibilities of the audit committee assigned by
the Board.

7. Anything else as assigned by the Board and has been approved by the audit

committee.
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Management

As of December 31, 2009 there were 6 members of management as follows

Management Name Position

1. | Mr. Samart Chiradamrong Managing Director

2. | Mr. Surasak Khemthongkum Credit and Marketing Manager

3. | Mr. Wanchai Boontham Collection Manager

4. | Ms. Watcharaporn  Meruthong Accounting and Finance Manager

5. | Mr. Somkid Charupaiboonphan | Administration and Personnel Manager
6. | Mr. Thosaporn Lerdbhan Information Technology Manager

Authority and scope of the Managing Director

1.

2.

To operate and manage the company's normal business.

To operate and follow-up the company's operation within the business plan and
the company's policy which was set up by the Board of Directors.

. To approve the company's expenses within the yearly budget which was approved

by the Board of Directors.

. To consider employment, promotion, transfer, resignation and set up wages and

salary of employees.

. To be the proxies in administering the company's operation compliance with its

objectives, regulations, discipline, and command.

. To make agreements and decisions according to the normal operation of the

company. To make approval in the company's operation compliance with level of
authorization which is appointed by Board of Directors. The Managing Director can
also appoint a proxy to act or do the duties which are necessary and appropriate.
That appointing should be done under the Government's regulations and the

company's discipline.

However such appointing does not include the authority which provides the

Managing Director or any proxy to approve the transactions or contracts that he is

involved directly or indirectly in advantage/disadvantage, and when that involvement

causes a conflict of interest to the company or any related transaction which referred

by the Stock Exchange of Thailand's regulations. However such appointing can be

done by the approval of Board of Directors and shareholders compliance with related

law and the company's regulations.
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Board of Directors, Management and Authorized persons' information
as at 31 December 2009

Mr. Mitsuji Konoshita

age 42 years

Position Chairman of the Board of Director

Education Master and Bachelor of Law, Osaka University, Japan
Shareholding - none —

Year of Directorship 3 years

Positions as Director/ Management in other companies
Other Listed Companies 1 company : United Securities Public Co., Ltd.
Non-Listed Companies 6 companies
Connected Business that may cause conflict of interest
- none -
The number of attendance the Board of Directors’ meeting in 2009 : 8/12
Work Experience last 5 years :

2008 — Present Chairman of the Board of Director, A.P.F. International Insurance Co. Ltd.
2008 — Present Director, P.P. Coral Resort Co.,Ltd.

2007- Present Director, A.P.F. Hospitality Co., Ltd.

2007 - Present Chairman of the Board of Directors, Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.

2006 — Present Chairman of the Board of Directors, United Securities Public Co., Ltd.
2005 - Present Director, A.P.F Holdings Co., Ltd.

2004 — Present Director, Sanwa Techno Co., Ltd.

2000 - Present Director, Sanwa World Services Co., Ltd

Mr. Samart Chiradamrong

age 57 years
Position Vice Chairman of the Board and Managing Director
Education Master of Science in Management Engineering,

Saint Louis University, Philippines.
Five-month computer science course.
Directors Accreditation Program (DAP) May 18th, 2004.

Shareholding 5,380,219 ordinary shares or 9.58%
Year of Directorship 20 years

Positions as Director/ Management in other companies
Other Listed Companies - none -
Non-Listed Companies 1 company
Connected Business that may cause conflict of interest
- none -
The number of attendance the Board of Directors’ meeting in 2009 : 12/12
Work Experience last 5 years :

2007 — Present Vice Chairman of the Board and Managing Director, Group Lease Plc.
2005 - 2007 Chairman of the Board of Directors, Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.
1990 - 2005 Managing Director, Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Muneo Tashiro

age 37 years

Position Director

Education Osaka University, Faculty of Literature (1997)
Shareholding - none —

Year of Directorship 1 year

Positions as Director/ Management in other companies
Other Listed Companies : Wedge Holdings Co.,Ltd (Osaka Stock Exchange) as CEO
Non-Listed Companies : 5 companies
Connected Business that may cause conflict of interest
- none -

The number of attendance the Board of Directors’ meeting in 2009 : 7/8
(positioned as director from 22 April 2009)
Work Experience last 5 years :

2007 - Present Asukano Holdings and Wedge Holdings Co., Ltd.
2002 - 2007 Works Applications Co.,Ltd.

2001 - 2002 NOC Nippon Outsoucing Corporation Co.,Ltd.
1997 - 2002 Pasona Inc.

Mr. Surasak Khemthongkum

age 44 years
Position Director and Marketing & Credit Manager
Education Bachelor of Political Science, Ramkhamhaeng University

Mini M.B.A. Rangsit University (RMM)
Directors Accreditation Program (DAP) June 15th, 2007.

Shareholding 54,600 ordinary shares or 0.10%
Year of Directorship 3 years

Positions as Director/ Management in other companies
Other Listed Companies - none -
Non-Listed Companies - none -
Connected Business that may cause conflict of interest
- none -

The number of attendance the Board of Directors’ meeting in 2009 : 12/12
Work Experience last 5 years :

2007 — Present Director , Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.
2003 - Present Marketing and Credit Manager, Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.
1996 - 2002 Head of Credit Division, Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Deepong Sahachartsiri

age 36 years

Position Director

Education Master of Business Administration, Thammasart University
Bachelor of Architecture, Kingmongkut Institue of Technology,
Ladkrabang
Directors Accreditation Program (DAP) April 27th, 2007.

Shareholding - none —

Year of Directorship 3 years

Positions as Director/ Management in other companies
Other Listed Companies - none -
Non-Listed Companies - none -
Connected Business that may cause conflict of interest
- none -

The number of attendance the Board of Directors’ meeting in 2009 : 12/12
Work Experience last 5 years :

2007 — Present Director , Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.
2005 - 2007 Product Manager, Mahaphant Fibre Cement Public Co., Ltd.
2003 - 2005 Assistant Marketing Manager, Sun Wood Industries Public Co., Ltd.

Mr. Chatchai Chotanakarn

age 57 years
Position President of Audit Committee and Independent Director
Education M.S. (Computer Science) Florida Institue of Technology, U.S.A

M.S. (Agricultural Economics) Kasetsart University
Directors Accreditation Program (DAP) April 27th, 2007.

Shareholding - none —
Year of Directorship 3 years

Positions as Director/ Management in other companies
Other Listed Companies - none -
Non-Listed Companies - none -
Connected Business that may cause conflict of interest
- none -

The number of attendance the Board of Directors’ meeting in 2009 : 11/12
Work Experience last 5 years :

2007 — Present Chairman of the Audit Committee and Independent Director,
Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.

2001 - Present IT Senior Vice President, Bangkok Life Assurance Pcl.

1998 - 2001 IT Director, Financial Sector Restructuring Authority Organization

1994 - 1998 IT Director, Savco Wholesale Co., Ltd.

1987 - 1994 Project Manager, Bank of Thailand
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Ms. Jaranya Sangsukdee

age
Position
Education

Shareholding
Year of Directorship

45 years

Audit Committee and Independent Director

Executive MBA Kasetsart University

B.A. (Management) Sukhothai Thammathirat University

Mini Master of Management Program, NIDA

Directors Accreditation Program (DAP) class 62/2007, April 2007.
Directors Certification Program (DCP) class 96/2007, December 2007.
- Monitoring the Internal Audit Function (MIA)

- Monitoring the Quality of Financial Reporting (MFR)

- Monitoring the system of Internal Control and Risk Management (MIR)
- Monitoring Fraud Risk Management (MFM)

- none -
3 years

Positions as Director/ Management in other companies
Other Listed Companies 1 company : Globlex Holding Management Public Company Limited as a

Audit Committee and Independent Director.

Non-Listed Companies 2 companies
Connected Business that may cause conflict of interest

- none -

The number of attendance the Board of Directors’ meeting in 2009 : 10/12
Work Experience last 5 years :

2007 — Present
2007 - Present
2007 - Present
2008 — Present
2006 — Present
2003 — Present

2006 - 2007
2004 - 2005
2002 - 2003

Audit Committee and Independent Director, Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.
Managing Director, Tax Specialist Co., Ltd.

Managing Director, Bangkok Training Center Co., Ltd.

Tax Advisor TOT Public Co., Ltd.

Tax Advisor Provincial Electricity Authority

Tax Advisor PTT (Gas) Public Co., Ltd

Tax Advisor Metropolitan Waterworks Authority

Tax Advisor CAT Telecom Public Co., Ltd.

Tax Advisor Airports of Thailand
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Mr. Satit Rungkasiri

age 50 years
Position Audit Committee and Independent Director
Education MA in Economics, Atlanta University, U.S.A.

Certificates in Taxation from The University of Canberra and
The University of New South Wales, Australia.

The Civil Service Executive Development Program 1, Class of 39
Directors Accreditation Program (DAP) August 22" — 23", 2003

Shareholding 48,000 ordinary shares or 0.09%
Year of Directorship 6 years

Positions as Director/ Management in other companies
Other Listed Companies 1 companies : Thai Wah Food Product Public Company Limited
as a President of Audit Committee and Independent Director
Non-Listed Companies - none -
Connected Business that may cause conflict of interest
- none -

The number of attendance the Board of Directors’ meeting in 2009 : 7/12

Work Experience last 5 years :

2004 — Present  Audit Committee and Independent Director, Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.

2002 — Present  Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee, Thai Wah Food Products PCL.

2002 - 2004 Honorary advisor to Economic, Commercial and Industrial Senate Committee.

1984 - Present Visiting lecturer in Tax Law and Accounting Graduate courses, Chulalongkorn,
Thammasart, Chamber of commerce Universities and others.
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Mr. Wanchai Boontham
age
Education

Shareholding
Work Experience last 5 years :
2003 - Present

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 : GROUP LEASE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

51 years

Mini M.B.A., Rungsit University ,Thailand. (RMM II)
B.A. Law Ramkhamhaeng University, Thailand.
48,000 ordinary shares or 0.09%

Collection Manager, Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.

Ms. Watcharaporn Meruthong

age
Education

Shareholding
Work Experience last 5 years :
2004 - Present

41 years

B.B.A. (Accounting) Institute of Social Technology, Bangkok, Thailand
Bachelor Degree of Business Administration, Major in General
Management, Chandrakasem University, Thailand

Micro MBA, Chulalongkorn University, Thailand

55,000 ordinary shares or 0.10%

Accounting and Finance Manager, Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.

Mr. Somkid Jarupaiboonphan

age
Education

Shareholding
Work Experience last 5 years :
1996 - Present

Mr. Thosaporn Lerdbhan
age
Education

Shareholding
Work Experience last 5 years :
2004 — Present

47 years

Bachelor of Arts (B.A.)

Major Subject Thai Language and Literature,
Srinakharinwirot University, Chonburi
58,700 ordinary shares or 0.10%

Personnel and Administration Manager, Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.

42 years
B.B.A. (Accounting) Institute of Social Technology, Bangkok , Thailand

55,000 ordinary shares or 0.10%

Information Technology Manager, Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.
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Nominating Directors
Board of Directors

The company hasn't established a Nominating Committee, however abilities,
experiences, vision, and credit are factors to consider when nominating directors and

proposing the list to shareholders to appoint.

The company's regulations state that in each of annual general meeting, one of
three of directors or nearest amount (1/3) must resign. In the first and second years
after registering the entity, there would be tickets for picking out the resigning directors.
In later years there will be ranking in resignation. However, resigned directors can be re-

nominated.
Principle and voting methods for nominating directors are :

1. Each shareholder shall have a number of votes equal to the number of shared
held.

2. Each shareholder must exercise all the votes he has according to number of
shares held (as in item 1). He may nominate one or several persons as
directors. If several persons be nominated, he may not shares his voting rights

with others.

3. The candidates shall be ranked in descending order from the highest number
of votes received to the lowest, and shall be elected as directors equivalent to
the number of directors who are elected by the meeting of shareholders. In
the event that there is a tie in the last to be elected, and this exceeds the said
number of directors that the meeting of shareholders is required to appoint,

the presiding Chairman shall have the deciding vote.

The Audit committee

The Boarding of Directors to appoint the Audit committee's members, and the term for

holding office is two years.
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Remuneration of Directors and the management

Remuneration in terms of money* (Unit : Baht)
Directors’ Name 2009 2008

1. Mr. Mitsuji Konoshita 150,000 180,000
2. Mr. Samart Chiradamrong 190,000 200,000
3. Mr. Muneo Tashiro 150,000 -

3. Mr. Surasak Khemthongkum 190,000 200,000
4. Mr. Deepong Sahachartsiri 190,000 200,000
5. Mr. Chatchai Chotanakarn 220,000 230,000
6. Mr. Satit Rangkasiri 140,000 170,000
7. Ms. Jaranya Sangsukdee 210,000 250,000

Total 1,440,000 1,430,000

Remark : Mr. Muneo Tashiro positioned as director on April 22", 2009.

* Attendance allowance and Bonus

Number of Management and their
2009 2008
remuneration

Number of Management (person) ““

Salary, Bonus, Provident fund, and other

remuneration (million Baht) 12.15 11.31
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Good Corporate Governance Report for the year 2009

The Board of Directors to realize the relevance of corporate governance to comply with
the company’s regulations and Public Company Acts by the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The
company has a clear policy and procedures to ensure transparency, control, and to protect the
long term interests of shareholder by considering corporate ethics, including stakeholders and

society. The implementation of the policy and result for the last year are as follows :

Rights of Shareholders

The corporate governance policy concerning the rights of shareholders

From the Board of Directors’” meeting no. 12/2007 which was held at
October 25, 2007 involving the directors and members from the Audit
committee, the company has improved the good corporate governance policy,
determine the frameworks and post on the company website. However for the
practical details, the company use “The Principles of Good Corporate Governance

for Listed Companies 2006” as the guide line.
Rights and equitable treatment of shareholders

The company treats each shareholder fairly, such as informing about
company’s information, informing about the annual general meeting, rights in
voting, etc. Furthermore, the company provides convenience for shareholders in
participating in the annual general meeting, such as providing necessary
documents, and also informing the date, time and the minutes not less than 7
days before the meeting. (or 14 days prior for the meeting which have important

agenda)
Shareholders meeting

In the year 2009, the company arranged an Annual General Shareholders
Meeting on April 22", 2009 at the head office of the company, locate in
Bangkok, the company inform the date, time, place, and the details of each
agenda adequately to Shareholders and also post on the company website in
advance. The period of the meeting would be arranged appropriately and open

for shareholders to inquire and suggest to the Board of directors.

53



ANNUAL REPORT 2009 : GROUP LEASE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

n1sufiidisianfariuacinotitingsfiy

nsufiicicarfariudiuiian

o W¥n dalamalviddaiudiutamauainsylsyan uavsrafianssunisalonii
dunar 2 wauade Wume website wasidEny Taaamenssuanslafinng

fvuanarifiinsguiavinnsdaidan  Wataualuiidssyuansiugdaiu

o

o

syantl 2553 daldfinisusenalvigdaniunsiuuy website ua913¥N wavsyuu

o

AstaLwSIMEsaasaaandnning (ELCID) Taagdaviusunsaiauaiauas

o

Nsvlddousiui 16 aanan 2552 — 31 fudan 2552 ad9lsAd Lifigdanu
WWuasadauaznszantin dnsunisuszauluid

o lunmsuszyugdariu wB¥ny liwlidanausunydesvudianssunsasse 3 vinu
Wagvanlunsuausunsuasiiusssusagfariy  wasus¥vg  Auuadsnns
avazuuudalunnsrlaaliinsasazuuuiiianuldsela warasiasay'le

o U3HNY MifnsiRnsTlsTanA L ldudearomiin

o lunsufandinssunis giarusnaunsaliddnsidantafunaynaa

a o o

o udumssyan  WEv  lddaiAusraaunsseyugdaruiiniunisiusasannii

Uszapgdaviuliatradussifianuuarilaands dyrasanisasiagau

ununaasnldu'laLdia

v

nauidUlaLd

viEnlianuddgydunaugisuldidaiidmdasfunissfiugsiazas

L] o

s ' a o o

3w iagtuayuliinanuiniiaduseninouddnuazgiidiulédalunisasie

o
'
Qs

ANNTUAY &390 wards AT EfigIuEAIs I uidua Taelduanuuinielunis

a

Ufidsugiahuladausasnaudoil

a 1 o

0 AANHUIMITUATWITAYIU U3EHNY UfTiRaafuinisiazniinuatiavintiaudu

usssu way Winanauunuinyay
0 AnaNAAY UIEN4 Ufi aﬂmmuwau“l,?mwn'ml,az/usaﬁmmm"l,mﬁmsaou'm
Auacinadlusssu

o aguandl v3ENY Wianuarlalduarduasnauanudadnisuadgnal taaLtiu

nstiaNud Ay AR IWEaILENs U A TIINEEY

o nauusHnNedussAanuudedy  vEEng Ufidsavdidnaug neidugsia

Snwawidendu atroilusssy aaanaufinnsnunguiiathawmdaiuluunelania

0 Hauuaryury gfsAavasiEnd wunsdnfiunsihinsznusdadewindanuas

BUAULRLIIAN

54



ANNUAL REPORT 2009 : GROUP LEASE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Rights and equitable treatment of shareholders

Minority shareholders treatment

The company facilitate minority shareholders to propose 2 and a half months
in advance of the agenda and the candidates to be nominated as director for
consideration on AGM 2010, declaration was on the company website and
SET information disclosure system (ELCID), shareholders can propose the
name and agendas from October 16 — December 31, 2009. The board of
directors have a pre-determined criteria on screening the issues proposed,
anyway no shareholder proposed both agenda and candidate names for this
year.

For Shareholders’ meeting the company use the proxy form which specify 3
independent directors’ name for shareholder to appoint an independent
director as their proxy and for the transparency and future reference, the
company use voting card for every agenda.

The company did not add any agenda items without notifying other
shareholders in advance.

Directors election utilize a process in which shareholders are able to vote on
individual nominees.

After the shareholders” meeting, The minutes of meeting are filed and kept in

a secure place for auditing

Role of Stakeholders

Stakeholders

The company realizes the relevance of stakeholders who are concerned in the

company’s operation. To support co-operation between the company and

stakeholders for creating maximum economic value to the company. The

company sets rules to each group of stakeholders clearly as follows:

(0}

(o}

Management and personnel The company treats the management and

personnel fairly and gives appropriated remuneration.

Dealers The company treats the dealers fairly regarding the contracts made

between the company and dealers.

Customers The company realizes the quality of services with appropriate price

by concentrating and satisfying the customers’ need.

o Competitors The company treats the competitors fairly and also co-operates

at an appropriated time.

Social and public — With the characteristics of the company, there is no cause
that will affect society and the public.
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Communication to the board

The board of directors provide a way for stakeholders to communicate to
the board any concerns about illegal or unethical practices, incorrect financial
reporting, insufficient internal control, etc. The rights of any person who
communicates such concerns will be protected. One channel is via e-mail

announced on the website, which will direct to the Board.

Policies on environmental and social issues

The company business have no impact to the environment. For the
social issues, the company has policies to focus on education support. In 2009
the company had supported many education projects such as Scholarship
Program for employee’s child who can study well, donate used-motorcycle as a
teaching material to career promotion division of social development department
: BMA, donate computers and projector to the library of royal Thai Army region 2
at Nakornrachasrima, Together with other APF group companies arranged CSR
activity to preserve North — East region’s culture and Arts “Hoop-Tam” at Na Pra
Tart Temple, Nakornrachasrima inviting Thai and Japanese artist to instruct the
students who was qualified from the local school.

Other CSR activities such as donate motorcycles to some local police
stations in the upcountry, supporting child - day activities for the metropolitan
police station and Protection and disaster relief agencies, to support The 2™
International Conference on Disaster Preparedness for Persons with Disabilities

by Thailand Association of the Blind, support funding for orphan and

underprivileged child.
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Disclosure and Transparency

Disclosure Channel

In 2009 the company has developed and continuously update website as
the center of company’s information disclosure which provide in both Thai and
English, in addition to annual statement (Form 56-1), annual reports and SET

information disclosure system (ELCID)

We give the importance of disclosing information whether financial data
or others. They must be accurate, complete, clear and on time to enable
investors and interested parties to use them in making decision. We have a unit
to handle such duty call “Investor Relations” which may contact at tel. 66 2580
7555 ext. 5023 or make inquiries through the Company’s website:

www.grouplease.co.th.

The Board of Directors’ Report

The Board of Directors have to take responsibility for financial statements
and notes presented in the annual report. Financial statements and the
results of operation are presented in accordance with General Accepted
Accounting Principles. Accounting records are also prepared appropriately
and consistency with previous years. Notes to financial statements will be
sufficiently  disclosed, including completeness, accuracy, truth and
reasonability. The Board of Directors arrange the disclosure of information
in the annual report included the statement of its responsibilities concerning
the company financial report presented along side the auditor report, and
the company will send the annual report together with a letter to inform

about the meeting to shareholders.

The Board of Directors ensure that its roles and responsibilities together with
those of its committees are disclosed. The number of meetings and
attendance of each director as well as results of tasks performed during the

year are also be reported to shareholders in the annual report.

The Board of Directors has revised and provide a summary of the corporate
governance policy together with the implementation of the policy through

the company website. (detailing in company website)

The Board of Directors has approved policies on environmental and social
issues, these policies also be disclosed together with the implementation

through the company website. (detailing in company website)
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Responsibilities of the Board

Board Structure

Number and Ratio The Board of Directors consists of 8 members as 3

persons for Executive Director, 6 persons for non-executive Directors, and 2
persons for Independent Directors. The ratio of independent directors is
37.5% of total directors for balancing the power, and so no single group can

make decision on their own.

Term of service clearly stated in the company’s article of the association,

the 3 longest in the position have to resign in AGM but still have opportunity
to be nominated for election. For the audit committee have term of service 2

years.

The definition of independent directors the company define the qualifications

of the independent directors accord with SEC regulations as follows :

0 An independent director does not hold more than 1% of paid-up shares in the
Company, parent company ), its subsidiary , affiliated company © or related
company or any legal entity that has related persons .

o An independent director is not an employee, staff member, an advisor who
receives a regular salary or a controlling party of the Company, its parent
company, its subsidiary, affiliated company or any legal entity that has related
persons. (present and 2 years before appointment)

0 An independent director is not an immediate family member or a person legally
occupying similar status as parents, spouse, siblings, sons and daughters
including spouses of sons and daughters of an executive officer of the Company,
a major shareholder, a controlling person or an individual who will be nominated
to be an executive officer of the Company or any of its subsidiary.

o An independent director does not have business relationship with the Company,
its parent company, its subsidiary, affiliated company or any legal entity, which
has related persons that the relationship does not interfere with his exercise of
independent judgement. And among other things materiality in making an
independent opinion regarding the operation of the Company.

Note : (1) A parent company is the company that holds more than 50% of the Company’s paid-up capital. (2)
A subsidiary is the company that we hold more than 50% of its paid-up capital. (3) An affiliated is the company
that we hold more than 20 % but not more than 50% of its paid-up capital. (4) legal entity that has related

persons includes those who hold more than 10% of its paid-up capital.

All 3 Independent Directors have qualifications required for the
Independent Director and are also members of the Audit Committee in
accordance with the SEC notification korlortor.kor.(wor) 32/2551 at June 5%,
2008.

61



ANNUAL REPORT 2009 = GROUP LEASE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

. ANTENTIEILNLINTINNITIULSHEY AazATIuATTATVUATEE I uIuLSEN T

AFTUATULERSVINUATRINITAAITIGLKUINTINATT L6 TUAITIAY 8 13N &15u

o

ATINMSEIANITUARLHLZUTsEA LY WildiAaduLEv asanannvinudas

a o

forulsritag AusEmn UIULFENANTTUANTUARLVNUAITIAILNUINTTNANS

|l
29
Ee

A1UIULSEHN

smﬁ'anssums GLLALUS

NETIFALIUINTTNANT

aingl Taluding Uszanunssuns 8
ULFINTA 586199 52915¢61UNT5UANT / ATIUNTHARNNS 2
uayuglay als N35UN13 7
muaséfnﬁ Viiunagen A33UANT 1
UNEFNIA Jnzamhds N35UNT 1
uadasde AU 1U5¥51UNTIUNTATIARAY / ATINNTARTY 1
aREa AR NTTUNNTATIARAL / NTIUNTARTY 2
UNRNIFTUY URIFUR N3TUNITATIARAU / NTTUNITARTY 4

. N9ANTIENLNUIUTZEIUNTIUAITLRYATINATTHAANTT UTLEIUATINAITUAILFEN

NileifuyaranuidaAudunssunisgiannis vdEnlafiansAiiruanisuanaiuna

nihfuadamgnssunIsudEnuazassunIsanagaudailunssunisaasyliadne

daiau doazrinninilunisalnanardauniunsudmsauaadgusmsand e
AgNTINNTHLALRaNTHATINNITERTEATIAILAUILTEE1UNTIUNNS

a wa

- RNUMNBEEN 13¥NY fianunsusny devintinidszanuaulvifinis g

MUNAAUEATINANT ARAAIUALTIUTIAAFTE AL AL AUATUsT 2 LAY AT
sy Teeflszauamenssunisa¥on 3/2551 au. Jufl 19 fiunau 2551 fiud
wevdatazunsuEEnadtaiiumenis ialvisanadasdun.s.u. ndnnwdaliy

Tu

ALTNSSNNSARALIAL

lulaay  wEnldinsiadeaaznssunistatanldun AmgnssNNITATIAEAL
doarthasiuayuludinaasnisinduguaianis adelsAain wd¥ndelaiiuiaue

lunsiadenaizaynssunsuanitiaannaaenssunisasiagauluamaadulng

62



ANNUAL REPORT 2009 = GROUP LEASE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

. To be the Board Positions in other companies the company limit the number

of board positions that a director can hold at 6 companies, managing director
and other high level managers have to work full time in the company so no
need to have limit. The number of board membership positions of each

directors are as follow :

Number of Board

Directors’ Name Positions including

every company

Mr. Mitsuji Konoshita Chairman of the Board of Directors 6
Mr. Samart Chiradamrong Vice Chairman/ Managing Director 2
Mr. Muneo Tashiro Director 7
Mr. Surasak Khemthongkum | Director 1
Mr. Deepong Sahachartsiri Director 1
Mr. Chatchai Chotanakarn President of Audit Committee/ Independent Director, 1
Mr. Satit Rangkasiri Audit Committee/ Independent Director 3
Ms. Jaranya Sangsukdee Audit Committee/ Independent Director 4

Roles of Chairman and Managing Director The Chairman of the Board of

Directors and Managing Director are not the same person. Separating
management powers and having an Audit committee also ensures a balance
of management.

The Board of director did not choose an independent director to be

chairman of the board.

. The company secretary the company has secretary who serve the board of
directors in areas of taking care of the board'’s activities, and monitoring
compliance to the board’s resolution including keep all important documents
about board of directors meeting and resolutions. In the Board of Directors
Meeting no. 3/2008 on March 19™,2008 has resolution to appoint the
company secretary accord with the new SEC ACT.

Sub - Committees

The company has only Audit Committee as a sub-committee which will help
support in corporate governance. Anyhow the company does not have a policy

to establish any other committees in the near future.
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Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

Review and approve key business factors The Board of Directors involved in

planning of the company’s strategy, objective, policy, and budget. The
board of directors also advise and control the implementation of the plan

according to the policy.

Corporate Governance Policy The Board of Directors set and approve a

written corporate governance policy for the company on the Board of
Directors Meeting no. 12/2007 held on October 25", 2007. The company
review the policy and compliance to the policy annually, for the year 2007
the Board of Directors Meeting no. 2/2009 held on February 17th, 2009 has
considered and approved the Corporate Governance report, to disclose in the

annual report and post on the company website.

Business Ethics The company provides the disciplines of directors,

management, and personnel according to a Code of Ethics or Statement of
Business Conduct. The disciplines are documented, and are informed to
directors, management, and personnel. Furthermore the company provides
documentation about work roles, honesty, and punishments for directors,

management, and personnel to follow. All staff know those regulations.

Conflict of Interests the Board of Directors proposed the preventive action

for conflict of interest carefully and truthfully. Reasonable and independent
of business ethics to get the total benefit, procedures to prevent conflict of
interest are generated as follows :

o To conduct transactions between the company and related persons, have to be
considered and approved by Audit Committee in accordance with the Securities
and Exchange Act. The persons who are involved in that transaction cannot

vote.

o To disclose and inform the related transactions to shareholders. Furthermore,
the appropriation and reasonable of price and transactions have to be verified

and suggested by the Audit committee or independent financial consultant.

o To prohibit directors and management in providing the company’s information

for his advantage directly or indirectly
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o According to the document no. korlortor (wor) 38/2551 about the
recommendation for normal practice under the Securities and Exchange Act
(no.4) B.E. 2551. The Board of Directors Meeting no.8/2008 held on August
21, 2008, the Board of Directors Meeting has approved the rule of normal
commercial terms for connected transactions between the company or its
subsidiary and directors, management or any other connected persons if those
transactions are normal commercial terms same as doing with the general
parties in the same situations, and no influences from the directors,
management or any other connected persons. The company will report the
connected transaction which amount over 1 million Baht in the Board of Director

meeting.

Internal Audit System The company realizes the relevant of internal controls

in every procedure to get the most efficient operations. In 2008 the company
hired a consultant —Tax Specialist Company Limited — to set and improve the
existing systems to get more efficiency. And the company also set security to
access internal information by using authorized passwords for each level.
The company also identifies the responsibility of each person. For financial
control systems, the company sets the procedure for verifying financial
report systems. Those reports are presented to the concerned management
every month. The company also arranges the management meeting to
consider and correct mistakes stated in the reports every month. The
company provides risk management by reporting accounts receivables’
management systems every month. Accounts receivable will be grouped
according to historical payment and each group will have officer taking
responsibility. Management, together with the Board of Directors’ meeting,
will be held to evaluate the efficiency of accounts receivable’ management

systems every month.
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Risk Management Policy It is the policy that every division is to perform in

compliance with the regulations and relevant laws. Operating policy,
operating regulations and command of authorization are in writing and
revised to cope with the on-going operation. We employed consultants to
assess operating risks of all divisions including the information technology
system, and report, to the Company, of the risks that may affect the
operation. The Audit Committee and the Executive Committee used the said
report to monitor and manage such risks. The management had held a
meeting to consider and had made up appropriate measures to deal with the
risks mentioned in the report.

Board Meetings

The Board of Directors’ meeting will be held quarterly according to the

company’s regulation. At present the company sets more frequency of the

meeting to once a month, and one further meeting for Audit committee which

will

be held every second month. Special meetings are held for necessary

occasions. The letters and documentations for meetings will be arranged and

sent for making understandings to directors at least seven days before the

meeting.

In 2009, 12 meetings were held and the directors who attended the

meetings, were named as follows :

Directors’ name Number of BOD attending

Mr. Mitsuji Konoshita 8/12
Mr. Samart Chiradamrong 12/12
Mr. Muneo Tashiro 7/8
Mr. Surasak Khemthongkum 12/12
Mr. Deepong Sahachartsiri 12/12
Mr. Chatchai Chotanakarn 11/12
Mr. Satit Rangkasiri 7/12
*Ms. Jaranya Sangsukdee 10/12

*positioned as director on April 22", 2009
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Board Self Assessment

The Board Meeting no. 2/2010 on 17 February 2010 resolved to approve
the self-assessment of the Board that evaluated the performance of the Board

for 2009 on the following:

Structure and Qualification of the Board
Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Board
Board of Directors Meeting

Function of the Board

Relationship with the Management

o v kW=

Directors and Management Development

From the overall evaluation, most of the performance was rated as
completely done and for the subjects that are not complete, the Board will make

appropriate changes at proper time.

Remuneration

. The company has set the appropriated remuneration to the directors and the
management comparable to the industry. The remunerations are accounted
to salary, attendance allowance and bonus.. The remuneration is considered
in relation to the operation result and performance of each Executive. The
remuneration is separated to be meeting fee which up to the number of
meeting attained. Every Directors have the same rate 10,000 baht once.
For Bonus is relied on the company performance which will normally propose
at the rate 2 times of employee bonus (ie. Employee get 2 months bonus,

directors will take 4 months).

. The audit committee will receive for more, up to the additional meeting

time, 10,000 baht once equally for everyone.

. The remuneration will be proposed to the annual general shareholders
meeting for approval annually.
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Board and Management Training

Training The Board encourage and facilitate training for all internal parties
related to corporate governance and support learning on the business
management for directors, members of the audit committee, executives,
company secretary and also the employee. The company provides both
internal and external seminar by professional association training such as
accounting association or revenue department and also the regulated office
such as SET and SEC.

New Director Preparation The company provide all documents and

information useful to perform director duties which introduce the nature of

the business and the operations of the company.

Succession Plan The Managing Director regularly present the succession

plan to the Board, assign successors in case they cannot perform their

duties.

Executives Development Program The Board has established a development

program for executives and the managing director will report to the board
annually. The executive development plan will be considered together with

the succession plan.

Inside information controls

The Company has discipline to prohibit disclosure of inside information to the
public for advantage, directly or indirectly. The company also provides punishments for
those incident. The company sets the committee which included all managers from every
department and the Managing Director who will make the judge. The punishments will
be provided equally according to the characteristic faults. If personnel are careless, he
will be given a warning letter. If the fault is intended and cause the company dramatic
damage, he will be fired according to corporate governance. The company also informs
all management, including his spouse and his children, to report any changes in their
securities holding to Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 and the Stock Exchange of

Thailand rules.
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Internal Controls

In the minutes of the company's Board of Directors of 2/2010, held on February
17™, 2010 which involved the Board of Directors together with the Audit committee, the Audit
committee evaluated internal control systems according to reports. They gave management an
explanation about all five operating systems; the company and its circumstance, risk
management, operational control of management, Information technology systems, and
internal control systems. The Audit committee concluded that the existence of internal control

systems is sufficient as follows.
e Control of the internal environment

With the company structure in written format, there are specific responsibilities of each
department. The company sets the goals for each department's future operation in which all
personnel are involved in driving to reach those goals. The company concentrates on the ethics
of working, such as honesty, loyalty and truthfulness. The company also writes rules and

punishments for any behavior which cause to the company damages.
¢ Risk assessment

Management gives more attention to risk management because the nature of the
company business is related directly to its risk. Management also gives more care and
circumspection in financial management and the credit approval process by evaluating potential
risk and setting preventive measure and risk management. There are preventive measure and
evaluations of risk from information technology which is at the heart of operational
performance. In addition, management also continuously evaluates outside factors which can

cause risk to the company's operation.
e Control activities

The company's organization is written to clarify specific responsibilities for each
department. To ensure accuracy and compliance with law and the company's regulation,

internal control system are introduced to verify and control the operation of each department.
e Information technology and communication

The company always gives support to information technology system and
communication system for speed, accuracy, and promptness in gathering and compiling. Setting
the format of the operation helps personnel to receive clear information. This system also
supports the decision process of management, correctly and promptly both solving problems

and future plans - especially accounting and financial information.
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Monitoring

Internal control processes have been introduced to follow the company's continuous
operation to ensure the success of meeting the goals. In addition there is the meeting of
management once a month, and for emergencies the meeting will be arranged to solve

problems which affect nhormal operations.

Furthermore the company also hires outsource-tax Specialist Company Limited to
consult about internal control systems. This consultant works independently, which supports
and suggests both risk management and internal control systems. The objectives of hiring

outsource are

1) To increase the efficiency of company operations and report the result to Audit

committee and management.
2) To ensure that the company's assets are used efficiency.

3) To inform the Audit committee and management about the potential problems, and

to solve that problems promptly.

4) To ensure the existence of appropriate systems, and to ensure personnel always

follow the prescribed systems.

Dividend Payment Policy

The dividend payment policy of Group Lease Public Company Limited will be paid not
less than 40 percentages from net profit after deducing tax and legal regulations reserved. The
factors to consider dividend payment are the company's performance, finacial status, liquidity,
expansion of the company and other related factors. The dividend payment must be resolved
with the minute of the general shareholders' annual meeting except the interim dividend
payment which is resolved by the minute of the Board of Directors committee and will be

informed to shareholders on next meeting.
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Related Party Transactions
The financial statement of Group Lease Public Company Limited as of December 31,
2009 presents related transaction as follows :

Related party transactions as at December 31, 2009

Related Company Mr. Samart Chiradamrong
\Relationship Director and a major shareholder who hold 9.58% of total paid up
capital
1. Transaction Loan from director as on-call promissory note with the interest
rate MLR
Interim 10 million Baht, interest paid amount 0.02 million Baht
Outstanding 0 Baht

The Audit Committee has reviewed and validated this transaction, and gave the opinion that this
transaction is needed to support the operating cash flow because that time the company was on
the process to get approval for new long-term loan from the Bank while existing loan was
completely draw down. The interest rate is referred to the normal rate which the company get
from the bank at MLR. This case classified as a general business transaction for the highest
benefit of the company with the reasonable interest rate. No more this kind of transaction in the
present day.

Related party transactions as at December 31, 2008

Related Company United Securities Public Company Limited

has the same director : Mr. Mitsuji Konoshita and APF Holding Co.,
Ltd. hold 78.59% of total shares.

1. Transaction No collateral Bill of Exchange 3 copies, issued to United Securities
Public Company Limited which is revolving B/E and the company
will re-issue on the expiration date, interest rate is 7.0 % equal to
average MLR +0.15%

Relationship

Interim 30.00 million Baht, interest paid amount 1.542 million Baht

Outstanding 0 Baht

The Audit committee has already reviewed and validated this transaction, and gave the opinion
that this is a general business transaction with the reasonable interest rate because this loan is

non-collateral sub-debt which has an inferior priority for repayment compare to other main debt
and also do not have loan fee.
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Related Company United Securities Public Company Limited

has the same director : Mr. Mitsuji Konoshita and APF Holding Co.,
Ltd. hold 78.59% of total shares.

2. Transaction Financial Advisor Fee for the increasing capital by issuance of new
ordinary shares according to the shareholding ratio.

EE

Interim 0.5 million Baht

Outstanding 0 Baht
The Audit Committee has reviewed and validate this transaction, and gave the opinion that this

transaction is a general business transaction for the company highest benefit with the reasonable
fee for this kind of service.

The essence and appropriation of related transactions

The essence and appropriation of related transaction are approved for gaining the
highest benefits to the company. All related transactions have to be reviewed for compliance
with the company's operation and its characteristic by the Audit committee. Furthermore the
fee/return for related transactions is paid at a fair price.

Procedures for approval of related transactions

The creation of related transaction depends on the essence and appropriation which
have to be presented to Board of Directors, together with Audit committee, for making the
judgment. All related transactions have to comply with the Public Company Limited Act, and
which the directors who involvement directly and indirectly with advantages/disadvantages of

the related transaction, cannot vote.

Policy and potential of related transactions

The Board of Directors have to realize the effects of related transactions that may cause
advantage and disadvantage between the company and its related company or persons. The
Board of Directors try to avoid related transactions, except when it causes a higher profit or

being essential.
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tdavdaarafimudantisnivnadsziamiluaunann usEnazlvaaznssunisasiadautug v
ANuiuLAEAUIA1 dasA1nauwny udvanudndunaranunsanuadnanisiaziindy u
nsdifiaaenssunsasasay lifianuaiunglunsRasansanissenindduiataindy ws¥nayld
gt dasewiagaautiyduasudsn Wugvianuiuidaidusanisseninedudonand tain
Anuiulildsenaunisdadulazasamznssunis wia giaviu auusnsdl edussvasilaine

samssznieAulilunnawmnlsznansunmsduildsunisasadauanngdaviyduasuzsn
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If there is any related transaction which causes to the company future benefits, the
Audit committee will give its opinion about its price, its return, the essence and appropriation of
that related transactions. However if the Audit committee is not a specialist in that area, the
specialist or external auditor will be introduced to give an opinion to the Board of Directors or
Shareholders when making the decision. Furthermore, the company has to disclose its related
transactions in Notes to the Financial Statement which have to be examined by the external
auditor.

For potential related transactions, the company sets the appropriated price and
conditions that may cause related transaction, according to the normal course of business. The
Board of Directors has to follow that discipline and cannot approve any related transaction
which causes them benefit but contradicts the company's benefit. Related transactions have to
be presented to Board of director to consider compliance with the Public Company Limited Act,
or any related derived from Security Organization which includes presentation and disclosure of

purchasing and selling assets between related the company or persons.
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FIUTANSTHURATHANISANTUNNS

Financial Position and Operating Results

JUNSHUY
sgqudsavrunsstauticydd

luszaznan 3 fewn WEmenasauiaagdauiydsuauaia 1alianusiu
lusaunsaTAdauaLsEnaInsaasl la ot

IUNTFY St Waaulieydsu | aruniuuag

n3HaU auaatauil wWaauiieyd

11 2552 | u3dn &fnou tdudn | wvamivum LAAFITTAUNR 3516 lifidaula

waue £ Aim

11 2551 | u3n &y tdudn | uENMFIUN LRAFITTAUNR 3516 ®aifiidaula

waue £ Aim

11 2550 | u3Ewn &fnonu tdudn | uENMFIUN LRAFITTAUNR 3516 ®aifiidautla

waue e Iim

Financial Statement

Conclusion of Auditors’ Report

For the past three years the company's financial statements had been audited

and have the opinion from the auditors as follows :

Financial Company Auditors’ Name ' Opinion
Statement

2009 Ernst and Ms.Rungnapa Lertsuwankul 3516 Unqualified

Young Office Limited

2008 Ernst and Ms.Rungnapa Lertsuwankul 3516 Unqualified
Young Office Limited

2007 Ernst and Ms.Rungnapa Lertsuwankul 3516 Unqualified
Young Office Limited
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JuaauasusEn NFUAR Afa (Urnau)

Financial Statement of Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.

“ulE - UL
unit : million Baht

il 2550
| 2007
ANNUIULNY FNNUIULY ANUIULU

| amount | _amount | amount

Aundnduyuiiau

Current Assets
WURALRENENSLALULVINIURA
Cash and cash equivalents 1.77 0.09 2.92 0.13 0.94 0.06
anuilanudaanihdauasanaray
adszdednuazdseaaluntell -
gna

Current portion of hire purchase
and installment sales receivables,

net 1,040.01 | 50.42 | 1,088.31| 47.79 779.45 | 48.66
funiwdsanisung — §na

Assets foreclosed, net 7.39 0.36 7.97 0.35 11.06 0.69
anuiinsuasswing

Revenue Department receivable 0.00 0.00 0.40 0.02 2.40 0.15
Suninevinuauiu

Other current assets 7 39.98 1.94 38.04 1.67 30.32 1.89
Total current assets | 1,089.15 1,137.62 824.18
Aundndlivyguiau

Non-current assets
Wurnlsganifiansgalsedu
Pledged fixed deposit at financial
institution 0.27 0.01 0.26 0.01 0.25 0.02
anviluazdulidiuungning
Accounts receivable and loans to

employees 0.06 0.00 0.04 0.00 0.04 0.00
WuaInusaze) — §na
Long-term investments 2.00 0.10 2.00 0.09 2.0 0.12

anuilaudeyaihdauasaanay
dsenfvriue drssiAunituiiell —
gnd

Hire purchase and installment sales
receivables - long-term portion, net 861.55 | 41.77 1,042.56 | 45.78 696.99 | 43.51
7du arasuazalnsal — and
Property, plant and equipment, net 50.36 2.44 50.66 2.22 39.32 2.45
FundndaEduldsadatiyd
Deferred tax assets 35.35 1.71 23.53 1.03 24.49 1.53
uninedbiviyuiaudu
Other non-current assets 7 23.79 1.15 20.79 0.91 14.61 0.91
Total non-current assets 973.38 | 47.19 | 1,139.84 777.71
SIUFUNINED
Total assets 2,062.53 2,277.47 1,601.88
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e UL
unit : million Baht

il 2551
, 2008
AUIULNY 5 AUIUNY AIUIULNY

‘ Amount | | Amount | | Amount
uildiu
Liabilities
uilauniyuidau
Current Liabilities
Wulinutiy fuasidudfinseasdu
AAIATUNITIEU
Bank overdrafts and short-term
loans from financial institutions 25.35 1.23 145.00 6.37 21.10 1.32
Muanidu
Bills of exchange 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 99.95 6.24
viuilnnsén
Trade accounts payable 1.50 0.07 0.82 0.04 1.65 0.1
Ruffiussazennaoinuntise
anaTuniiedl
Current portion of long-term loans 746.98 36.22 752.23 | 33.03 677.03 42.26
Wudduannnssunis
Loan from Director 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
MERulaldfiyanad1vang
Corporate income tax payable 36.76 1.78 33.38 1.47 21.51 1.34
vinuilendelsedu
Insurance payables 15.22 0.74 13.53 0.59 14.84 0.93
A ldanad19ane
Accrued expenses 9.73 0.47 11.55 0.51 18.60 1.16
nilduvyuiaudu
Other Current Liabilities 15.96 0.77 9.32 0.41 6.10 0.38

Total Current liabilities 41.29 965.83 | 4241 860.79 53.74

uilduliuyudau
Non-current liabilities
Wudiuszaze - amﬁmnmuﬁﬁo
Anuadiseaaluniiell
Long-term loans, net of current
portion 289.86 14.05 529.06 | 23.23 155.67 9.72

NudszAuanudamaaudeygiih
9ia

Cash guarantee for damage on hire
purchase agreements 7.00 0.34 17.75 0.78 24.97

saunilaubinyuidau
Total non-current liabilities 296.86 | 14.39  546.81  24.01 180.64

sunAY
Total Liabilities 1,148.36 55.68 | 1,512.64 | 66.42 | 1,041.43
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e @ Auun
unit : million Baht

il 2551 ' il 2550

AUIUNY 5 FNUPY | 3amae | AUy

‘ Amount Amount | % | Amount
frunavifaniu
Shareholders' equity
nuaanuaranszudl yadiuay 5.00
N
Issued and paid-up Capital of Baht 5
each 280.84 13.62 270.00 | 11.86 225.00 14.05
grutiuyaAIu
Share premium 187.66 9.10 148.20 6.51 78.00 4.87
A lsdzau
Retained earnings 4.43 0.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
055U drsavenunguune
Appropriated - statutory reserve 39.95 1.94 36.82 1.62 22.35 1.4
fla'lai'ladnass
Un-appropriated 401.30 19.46 309.80 | 13.60 235.11 14.68
syusruuavHaniu
Total shareholders' equity . 560.45
saunilduuazdriunavdariu

Total liabilities and
shareholders' equity 2,062.53 100 | 2,277.47 100 | 1,601.88
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JuAlsananu aavustin AUas I1Aa (NK2u)

Income Statements of Group Lease Public Co., Ltd.

s1e'ldannn156tiudIU
REEHTES
seldnanwatindauasanasay
2%19%
Hire purchase interest and
installment sales income

ANNUNUY
Amount

742.16

AIUIUNY
Amount

92.75 695.32 92.96

"l
unit :

IR 1A TR}
million Baht

il 2550
2007

AIUIULNY
Amount

492.82

90.91

se'ldeanidaannduiiialdusgn
Interest Income from Personal
Loan

se'ldau
| Otherincome |

arlafaalunisaitiiveiu
Expenses

A ldaralunstivsnisuay
1IN

Service and administrative
expenses

| s2usneld 000
Total Revenues 800.21 747.98 542.08

131.26

16.40 130.37 17.43

189.39

34.94

nilgeyuarnilaodaasaey
Bad debts and doubtful
accounts

125.15

15.64 102.19 13.66

43.86

8.09

WIANUAINNTINUUARUNTWE

TaNN3UNE

Loss on disposals of foreclosed

assets

T
Total Expenses

Alsnaum ldananivnsduuay

ANERule

Income before finance cost and

217.59

‘ 474.00

95.52

328.77

Corporate income tax
Alsgnsdrnsusin
Net income for the year

Asealiudiuiiugiu (un)
Basis earnings per share
(GELLS)

88

income tax 326.21 40.77 333.12 44,54 213.30 39.35
A lgananansdu
Finance cost (84.73) | (10.59) (88.43) | (11.82) (70.09) | (12.93)
MERulalfyaaa
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o a = | o
dnsr1drunivnisiungrdia
Financial Ratio

AT IUNIAAIINAINITO TUN153i1A 15

Profitability Ratio

daseanidasy (%)

Yield Rate 36.81 38.55 39.81 39.75
daseanidaang (%)

Interest Rate 6.81 6.59 6.92 7.58
fudvdnseanida (%)

Net Yield Rate 30.00 31.96 32.89 32.17
da91A15gne (%)

Net Profit Rate 22.64 24.56 19.81 18.24
dasnanauwnuiianiu (%)

Return on Equity 21.58 27.72 21.20 18.37

aardrungavilszdndnrnlunisa1iiuiiy

Efficiency Ratio

dasHanauLNuAINnRUNIWE (%)

Return on Total Assets 8.35 9.47 93 7.20
aas1nsuNuaaIduniweg (1vin)

Total Assets Turn Over Ratio (Times) 0.37 0.39 0.40 0.39

BATIAIUILATIZVY TEILIEIN TG

 Financial Policy Ratio
Sasdrunildusadiugdariu (win)
Ratio of Liability to Equity (times) 1.26 1.98 1.86 1.45

dasarudulvidsaiudg (1vin)
Ratio of Total Receivable to Loan from (times) 1.62 1.52 1.59 1.60
aas1nsanaduiluna (%)
Dividend Rate 69.77 7.35 75.41 N.A.

BO51AIUAUAINTUNTWET

Asset Quality Ratio

danahuanfaniadaazgaysaduidanu (%)
Ratio of Allowance for Doubtful Debt to Total
Receivable 8.92 5.96 5.22 7.81
dansdrunilgudadutany (%)
Ratio of Bad Debt to Total Receivable 3.42 2.13 3.10 4.63
fanahudulvidudarivaasuinaldsadudany (%)
Ratio of Non performing loan to Total Receivable 4.37 3.91 3.03 5.38
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A1ABLNEUALAISILASITUTIUTNIIAISHURATHANTITALTUIIU

ANTIUNANITALTUIY

w¥nisenaugsianistrivsasdudairdasadnsenuaudluluangonny  wazliuama
aaanudonialadida demaldndnuiainnistiihdasadnsanuauddesissaziainnseiauiiseal
Nasadnseusudauduaindawmdslssng 27 Wau wazsnglddonanduagfunulinaan
Imhasadnsauaud deflafiansanaanitviiasadnsenuaudlull 2551 agwuinaanituiig
sadnseuauFlulaanTIwMnY uavibuama finandutiudntiasain 366,290 Auluil 2550 iy
371,491 du Aaflusanay 1.4 denisiduTauvurzaadiiunaarniadasieg Taaanizsiatiigiu
uar &anunisaimnenisidias il 2552 Susadnsanuaudiaansifaulntilungonnuniuasuay
Fuana fd1uiu 329,476 Au Taauaalsaaay 11.31 aanil 2551 vlavanAnansznuuadingd
wAsgAaTan dmsuil 2553 fuunTiuasfiudiaunisfudizasAssAaTaesiu wazulauianis
nsEHULATHEAARINATS atn9lsAnN ANNTIAE wazdasnnisiudidoiudeimianisalléeann

wegaunIsalinazdnin ik uan

wiluaie 2 - 3 9AduN AlzATESARTaN aaanauaaIun1sala1gg Tulseing i
dadwaldaaiasadnsanuaudasadi waliafiasangIumIIn1sliuuarNan s iuunas
w3¥n i unwuindeasaruisasnianuannsalun1svind11s1ilé widnasuzaanisuene
fudiahdasadnsenuaud  Tealuil 2551 w¥nignuilaudaidagns 2,130.86 & 1uun
Wnduannil 2550 degnunilduifiandagnauwindy 1,476.44 @ uumviavindudadiusanay
44.32 il 2552 wEniganilaudtacidagnavindy 1,901.56 & unmanasandutl 2551 Aaiflu

a o o o

5agay 10.76 uananafivdEndedisialdfdulnattvsatiiagidudu Taaluil 2551 v3sniisalédsu

' ¥
-1

WinAu 747.98 & uunn tindiuannil 2550 desneldsiuvindu 542.08 duunusadaiiiusanas
37.98 & wsudl 2552 wwuniisaldsuvindu 800.21 &uun thRnduannil 2551 dadlusanas
6.98

90



ANNUAL REPORT 2009 : GROUP LEASE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Explanation and Analysis of Financial Position and Performance

Overall Operating Result

Group Lease Public Company Limited operate the service for motorcycle hire purchase
financing in Bangkok, vicinity area and upcountry. The main income comes from the hire
purchase finance of motorcycles business. The contract period of installment payment for hire
purchase of motorcycles is an average of about 27 months and that income depends on the
trend of motorcycles sales. In the year 2008 the motorcycles sales in Bangkok and vicinity area
slightly increase from 366,290 units in the year 2007 to 371,491 units or 1.4%, the slow growth
resulting from many factors especially oil price and political situations. In the year 2009
number of motorcycle registration in Bangkok and vicinity area is 329,476 units or decreasing
11.31% from the year 2008 which is the impact from the world economic crisis. In the year
2010, the motorcycle industry has tendency to be recover in accordance with overall economic
situation and government’s economic stimulant policy. However speed and recovery rate is

hard to predict, anyway the situation should be better than the last year.

Although for these past 2-3 years, the world economic and internal situation is not fit for
motorcycle market growth but the company’s financial status and operating result last year, still
can keep the profitability even slow down the hire-purchase receivable growth. In the year
2008, the company had net hire-purchase receivable amount 2,130.86 million Baht increasing
from 1,476.44 million Baht on the year 2007 44.32%. In the year 2009, the company has net
hire-purchase receivable 1,901.56 million Baht decreasing from the year 2008 10.76%. The
company also have the revenue growth continuously from 542.08 million Baht in the year 2007
to 747.98 million Baht in 2008 or increasing 37.98%. For the year 2009 the company has total
revenue 800.21 million Baht increasing 6.98% from the year 2008.
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s1a'le

il 2552 | il 2551 | il 2550
sa'lduasusin . sauazuav . Sauazuay . sauazuag
UL . LN . LN .
512116924 512116924 5121169724
A EHAUATY

49.26 | 9.09 |

52.66 | 7.04
542.08 | 100.00

747.98 | 100.00 |

| selgidu | 58.05 | 7.25 |
800.21 | 100.00

se'lgnannatindauas ‘ 742.16 ‘ 92.75 ‘ 695.32 ‘ 92.96 ‘ 492.82 ‘ 90.91 |
|
|

ANNTAsIES e lduasdinisyunasaaas 90 Husa'ldnannatindavazaianauiise u

1l 2551 se'ldeancatiidauazanasaudise  (Aaflusasay 92.96 wasselésiu) windu 695.32
&un Wntiuaini 2550 deseldnannaindauaranasauiisuvindy 492.81 &uun (Aaiily
5aua 90.91 wasne'ldsnu) viawuiudaidusasas 41.09 Hasannnsiinduaasiiinanislaan

suiitaihdiasadnsenuaudannnaisaenagsialldesonialndidas

gwsutl 2552 se'ldeancatiidauazanasaudissvindy 742,16 & (Aadlusauay
92.75 wasne'lésu) Andwdntiasannt 2551 deseldeannaindawazanasauiiise windu
695.32  dwuvuiaindudaiflusanar  6.74  ananmsaiuauiliunagnuiiahdaliiaglusydu

nddaAutlfsituun

uil 2551 w3¥ningldduq windu 52.66 &uun tiudiuannil 2550 deselédau g
WinAu 49.26 duunnnsadaflusasay 6.89 swsull 2552 wdEniisnglédug windu 58.05 &u
1 tRudiuanndl 2551 Aadlusasay 10.24 TaanmsiAndiuuassialédaug douedl 2551 fu &runds

Wnannlszanganlunisiaaugnnifdsudstulunanodasudunisaenadizasnisilaas
futia
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Revenues

Y 0 0 [ )
Company’s Revenue | .. gant | % Of total| i pape | % of total | oy pap | % of total
revenue revenue revenue

Hire purchase interest | 742.16 | 92.75 | 695.32 |  92.96 492.82 | 90.91
and installment sales

income

| Other Incomes | 58.05 | 7.25 | 52.66 | 7.04 | 49.26 | 9.09 |
100.00 542.08

From the revenues structure, around 90% come from hire purchase interest and
installment sales incomes. In the year 2008, hire purchase interest and installment sales
incomes (92.96% of total revenue) amount 695.32 million Baht increase from 492.81 million
Baht in the year 2007 (90.91% of total revenue) or 41.09% increasing from the expansion of

motorcycle hire-purchase receivable on the upcountry.

In the year 2009, hire purchase interest and installment sales incomes amount 742.16
million Baht (or 92.75% of total revenue) slightly increasing from the year 2008 6.74%

resulting from hire-purchase portfolio control to the same amount as last year.

Other incomes in the year 2008 amount 52.66 million Baht increase from 49.26 million
Baht of the year 2007 or 6.89%. For the year 2009 other incomes amount 58.05 million Baht
or increase from the year 2008 10.24%. The increasing of other incomes from the year 2007
come from the bill collection efficiency which has been improved continuously in the same

direction of the motorcycle hire purchase receivable expansion.
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A lafang

1l 2552 _ il 2551 _ 1l 2550
a1 lafananaumaniiiauazaiidu
afifynnauauEin fuum | duun | duun
m“tii:hﬂ‘lup'ﬁu‘s‘n'\'ﬂ,}asﬁms 131.26 | 16.40 130.37 | 17.43 189.39 | 34.94
AT aniigauasnilasdaasgey 125.15 | 15.64 102.19 | 13.66 43.86 8.09
2INUNNTIINRUANTNERUTANIT 217.59 | 27.19 182.30 | 24.37 95.52 17.62
e

v oo

A ldanaualdnamenisiunasmEtdulatdduana Usznausia 3 dhruvanléun

a1 lganalun1susnIsuaryuanig A ldaanilgauarniisodaasge LREANANUINANITINNUNE
ninddusanisana ull 2551 w¥nieldananausanifauarnsduldfsuanavindu 414.86
&urn (Aavilusanay 55.46 uassaldsin) windiuanntl 2550 dearldananaunanidawaza Sy
1éfifuaaasINwingu 328.77 &uun (Aaiflusanay 60.65 uasseldsin) viauindudadusanas
26.19 dlaRasansaavidaanisiindusadalddradaunanidauarnsduldidunaalutl 2551
wuaamMsintuzasA g aviigayuarviigodaavga  warAITTIANUAAMTIIMUNLRUNTE

3a2n13U"e

dusull 2552 wrEnialdananaualginanenistdu  wazaENuldddyaaatvindu
474.00 &uwm (Aaflusasay 59.23 wasna'ldsu) wWinduaini 2551 dearldananaudildane

v aao

mensdunarmFduldffyanavindy 414.86 duinvnvdaiindudadusasay 14.26 msufudu

v aa

aavAldaranaualgananienisdiu uacnEdulafifuaradiniull 2552 Jamauiann

1%
-

- Aldaaniigayuazuiisodoavgy dedlsznaudlis nigyuavafdaniaoduazgaiide
Wndussninena Taad1ldanadonaniintiuludasdiuiigoninnsiindunasselésiu
dlawsuduil 2551 ad9'lsfenu WaRasandandiudldaanigysagnnivida
wavkaulszuadil 2552 agilseunasanay 6.58 degoninflaiauduildauiisanay
4.80
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Expenses

Expense before finance cost ' - % of - % of
S e e % of total | Million | % of total total Million total
revenue Baht revenue Baht

revenue revenue
Service and administrative

expenses 131.26 | 16.40 130.37 | 17.43 189.39 34.94
Bad debts and doubtful accounts 125.15 | 15.64 102.19 | 13.66 43.86 8.09
Loss on disposals of foreclosed 217.59 | 27.19 182.30 | 24.37 95.52 17.62
assets

Total Expenses

Expenses before finance cost and corporate income tax comprise of 3 parts : service and
administrative expenses, bad debts and doubtful accounts and loss on disposals of foreclosed
assets. In the year 2008, the company had service and administrative expenses 414.86 million
Baht (55.46% total revenues) increasing from 328.77 million Baht of the year 2007 (60.65% of
total revenues) or increasing 26.19%. The increasing of expenses before interest and
corporate income tax in the year 2008 is resulting from bad debts and doubtful accounts and

loss on disposals of foreclosed assets.

In the year 2009, the company has expenses before finance cost and corporate income
tax 474.00 million Baht (59.23% of total revenue) increasing from 414.86 million Baht of the
year 2008 or 14.26%. Details of the increasing come from :

Bad debts and doubtful accounts comprise of the allowance of doubtful debt which
increase on the rate higher than the increasing of total revenues at the same period
of the year 2008. However the ratio of allowance for doubtful debt to total
receivable of the year 2009 is 6.58% which higher than 4.80% of the same period

last year.
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ANUAINAITIIMINENTWEHRUTaNTINE TotAnannyarIniwadufindusanisanadng e
yaAIninaduannslszyaananaatea Wniuludasduiigenitnisiinduuasse e
suANMsuEnafIzasnslaanduiiiaadssalilaodfiaiauduil 2551 atnelsAnudia
AATAUIFATRIUATUIANUINNATIINUNENTWEFUTAATU adaganiindauasaay
ahsy wundwmsuil 2552 wihdusasa:  11.44  wRuann 1 2551 dewvindusaaay  8.56
wazilafasandasdiugnuilsafinsastuiuganiiioruanuing 2552 dadrudonad
windusasay 0.53  deanasanndasdrudenandlull 2551  defidwvindusanay 0.77
uananfivzEnialifinnsinmihasafinaanlidluwsavsauiiyd Taalilviad1elundsnm
Wialutvfinaliitianisananuunntiu demnfiansandasndriunisininadunindgiia
sasafinfisanisanalundazsaufydwuindasnarunsedifidadalszunasasay 94 -98

SR RGN AL BB N ol A L]

2AIRIUNTINNUILRUNTWE d G]GIB‘J'QEIGWI‘iaﬂTS‘].I'\ﬂ

NSWERULANGUIIA

NINFRUANTUTENT9IA 15,858 12,855 8.970
mswuﬁuﬂlmmusa AREyild 16,312 13,394 9,172
niwgRunae'la 16,011 12,940 8 633
niudiulanaaa 301 454 539
amﬂmumsamumaum swefinsia 98% 97% 94%
safinfisanisuna

Aldanelunsusnisuarudmsiintuiiaadntianlutl 2552 fawdeudutl 2551 uauei
sreldisantudl 2552 Avinduaintl 2551 Liunniin WaRansandadiuuasarlidanalunis
uinsuazuIuIsaaneldrIuanavaInsaaay 17.43  luil 2551 (flusaaay 16.40 1uil
2552

96



ANNUAL REPORT 2009 : GROUP LEASE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Loss on disposals of foreclosed assets which calculate from the value of foreclosed
assets deduct by the selling price on auction, increasing on the higher rate compare
to the increasing of total revenue in the year 2008. However the ratio of loss on
disposals of foreclosed assets to total hire purchase receivable on the year 2009 is
11.44% increasing from 8.56% of the year 2008. And the ratio of motorcycle
foreclosed receivable to total receivable, in the year 2009 is 0.53% which decreased
from 0.77% of the year 2008. Besides, the company try to sell foreclosed asset as
soon as possible, the ratio of foreclosed asset to foreclosed asset for sell is quite

constant at the rate 94 — 98% detail is as follows :

The Ratio of the selling of foreclosed asset to foreclosed asset for sell

Balance at the beginning of period

Unit increasing in the period 15,858 12,855 8 970
Foreclosed Asset for Sales 16,312 13,394 9172
Units Sold 16,011 12,940 8633
Balance at the end of period 301 454 539
the ratio of foreclosed asset to 98% 97% 94%

foreclosed asset for sell

Services and administrative expenses have not much increasing in the year 2009
compare to the year 2008. The ratio of services and administrative expenses to
total revenue decreased from 17.43% in the year 2008 to 16.40% in the year 2009.
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aaniaang

il 2551 vsniinanidastawindy 78.43 & uun wintiuanall 2550 deaanidadnawindu
54.08 & utnuiadaiiiusanay 45.03 wlasannldudinsazanannsganiunsidudindudy 1,281
&urnain 833 duunviiasasiunismisuenasiuandduiiiaihdasadnseuaudlunainlnily
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Interest Expenses

In the year 2008, the interest expenses is 78.43 million Baht increased from 54.08
million Baht in the year 2007 or increasing 45.03% due to long-term loan from financial
institute rise from 833 million Baht in the year 2007 to 1,281 million Baht in the year 2008 to
support the expansion of business in upcountry. However the average interest rate in the
year 2008 is 6.59% decreased from 6.92% in the year 2007.

For the year 2009, the company has interest expense 70.73 million Baht decrease
from 78.43 million Baht in the year 2008 or 9.82% due to long-term loan from financial
institute decrease from 1,281 million Baht in the year 2008 to 1,037 million Baht in the year

2009 due to portfolio expansion slow down.
Net Income

In the year 2008, the company has net income before finance cost and income tax
333.12 million Baht, increasing 56.17% from 213.30 million Baht in the year 2008. The
company has net income 183.67 million Baht, increasing 71% from 107.41 million Baht in
the year 2007 due to an increasing in hire purchase interest and installment sales income
higher than the main expense : service and administrative expense and also have impacted
from changing in the accounting policy : Initial commissions and direct expenses arising in
respect of hire purchase contracts originated on or after 1 January 2008 are recognized as
expenses by amortizing them over the installment period using the effective interest rate
method, with amortization presented as a deduction from unearned income, which is
different from the initial commissions and direct expenses arising in respect of hire purchase
agreements originated prior to 1 January 2008 are recognized as expenses when they are

incurred.

In the year 2009, the company has net income before finance cost and income tax
326.21 million Baht, slightly decrease 2.07% from 333.12 million Baht in the year 2008. The
company has net income 181.13 million Baht, slightly decrease 1.38% from 183.67 million
Baht in the year 2008 due to an increase of interest and installment sales income less than
increasing expense, especially loss on disposals of foreclosed assets which had strong impact
from the economic crisis on the first 3 quarters.

In the year 2009 the company has loan interest rate average 6.81%, increasing from
6.59% in the year 2008 while yield rate is 36.81%, decreasing from 38.55% in the year
2008 resulting to the net yield rate just slightly decreased from 31.96% to 30.00%.
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Profitability Ratio

unit : %
~ Effective InterestRate | 2009 || 2008 | 2007
Yield Rate 36.81 38.55 39.81
Interest Rate 6.81 6.59 6.92
Net Yield Rate 30.00 31.96 32.89
Net Profit rate 22.64 24.56 19.81

Earnings per share

In the year 2008, the company has net income 183.67 million Baht. Number of issued
and paid-up ordinary share 54 million shares of 5 Baht each, earnings per share 3.46 (average
ordinary share 53.11 million shares) increasing 44.77% compare to the year 2007.

On January 7, 2008 the Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting no. 1/2008 approved the
resolution to increase capital 10 million shares of par value 5 Baht each, allocated 9 million
shares for exist shareholders according to shareholding ratio at the rate 5 existing ordinary
shares to 1 new ordinary share and allocated 1 million shares for the exercising of warrant to
buy ordinary share which issued to directors and employee or ESOP no. 1.

And on the Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting no. 2/2008 held on October 27", 2008
approved the resolution to increase capital 24.8 million shares of par value 5 Baht each, 24.3
million units allocate for the exercising of the warrants to purchase ordinary share of the
Company No.2 (GL-W1) which issued to the existing shareholders according to shareholding
ratio (20 existing common shares to 9 units of warrant), warrant term 3 years expiring date on
December 30, 2011. And allocated 0.5 million shares for the exercising of warrant to buy

ordinary share which issued to directors and employee or ESOP no.2.

In the year 2009, the company has net income 181.13 million Baht. Number of issued
and paid-up ordinary share 56.17 million shares of 5 Baht each, earnings per share 3.29

(average ordinary share 55.10 million shares) decreasing 4.91 % compare to the year 2008.

101



ANNUAL REPORT 2009 = GROUP LEASE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

SIUTNIINISIUY

funineisau

ar &ufl 2551 wEnidunswegsin usuiu 2,277.47 d&uun wintiuan&utl 2550 Gl
Auninesn 1,601.88 &urnmiluituiu 675.59 duunmvisaviutiudailusanas 42.171aafigand
auduanidavarananauiseiiluduniwdudniiudiuiue  2,130.86 d&uum  (Aadlusauay
93.56 aasduninesin) nduangutl 2550 deqanuiinuduaidavarananauiisyandindu
1,476.44 sruunniilusinuiu 654.09 Sunnmvidaindudaiiusanay 44.29 wlasannnsuenadilu

msilaasfuidtaidasadnseuaudattsatiiag

ot &ufl 2552 wiEwniiduniwdgsiu fustuiu 2,062.53 &uum anasannduil 2551 Gl

13
a

funswesiu 2,277.47 Sruummdluinuiu 214.93 daruunnviaasaddatiluianas 4.26 Taafignu
amuduanidavarananauissiiudunswdudniiudiuiy  1,901.56  &wuwm  (Aedlusauay
92.20 was&uninesu) anadanduil 2551 degauilanudyaindauazanasiautsraniwindu
2,130.86 &urmiuinuiu 229.30 sruunusaaaavdatilusanay 10.76 vlasannsuzaans

Usasdudandasasnsenuaud

AANANLKULAzNITHVAITaIULRH Ty

vidnderlaniisedeargyuasgnuiihdavazananaudrsydaiiugnuiinasniseniiu

gsfandnuacudsn at. &ufl 2552 2551 uag 2550 desialadl

gavilizhFauasaanauiss o $usi 31 suaran 2552

anguadgnuiidneise tangnuiluase'lé 3 Alanilaodaay | dnsasavuadan
ANTUUAIWNADNNA gey tHantigodaasgey
rhdauazananau (R1uun)

sz By LAY
wazulssAuau
L&eavne
(R1uun)

anuildanezinsy iy 1 9Ia 1,741.88 83.43 16.83 1.00
AE5E 2-3 97A 176.56 8.46 3.45 2.00
A19215E 4-6 9IA 99.57 4.77 97.56 100.00
Adse 7-12 9Im 53.17 2.55 51.94 100.00
AsEuNNndn 12 9Im 16.69 0.80 16.51 100.00

2,087.86

102



ANNUAL REPORT 2009 = GROUP LEASE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Financial Position
Assets

On December 31, 2008 the company had total assets 2,277.47 million Baht which is
increase from 1,601.88 million Baht in the year 2007, increasing amount 675.59 million Baht or
42.17%. Motorcycle hire purchase and installment sales receivable 2,130.86 million Baht
(93.56% of total assets), increasing amount 654.09 million Baht or 44.29% due to the
continuously business expansion.

At the end of the year 2009, the total assets is 2,062.53 million Baht decreasing amount
214.93 million Baht or 4.26% from the year 2008. Motorcycle hire purchase and installment
sales receivable 1,901.56 million Baht (92.20% of total assets), decreasing amount 229.30

million Baht or 10.76% from the year 2008 due to the portfolio expansion slowdown.

Debt quality and provision of allowances for doubtful debts

The company has allowance for hire purchase and installment sales receivable which is

the main company’s account receivable in 2009, 2008, and 2007 as follow :

Accounts Recelvable- Hire Purchase as of December 31, 2009

Aging of Hire — Purchase Accounts Receivable Allowance for % Allowance
Accounts Receivable and Accrued Income doubtful debt for doubtful
after deducting hire (Million Baht) debt
purchase Interest

income, VAT and
Deposit for loss from

customer
million Baht
Not exceed one installment 1,741.88 | 83.43 16.83 1.00
Past due 2-3 installments 176.56 8.46 3.45 2.00
Past due 4-6 installments 99,57 4.77 97.56 100.00
Past due 7-12 installments 53.17 2.55 51.94 100.00
Past due over 12 16.69 0.80 16.51 100.00
installments
Total 2,087.86 | 100.00 186.30 8.92
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Accounts Recelvable- Hire Purchase as of December 31, 2008

Aging of Hire — Purchase Accounts Receivable Allowance for % Allowance for
Accounts Receivable and Accrued Income doubtful debt doubtful debt
after deducting hire (Million Baht)
purchase Interest

income, VAT and
Deposit for loss
from customer

(million Baht)

Not exceed one 1,974.84 87.15 19.03 1.00
installment

Past due 2-3 installments 177.98 7.85 3.47 2.00
Past due 4-6 installments 75.20 3.32 74.74 100.00
Past due 7-12 installments 31.29 1.38 31.21 100.00
Past due over 12 6.71 0.30 6.71 100.00
installments

2,266.03

Accounts Recelvable- Hire Purchase as of December 31, 2007

Aging of Hire — Purchase Accounts Receivable Allowance for % Allowance for
Accounts Receivable and Accrued Income doubtful debt doubtful debt
after deducting hire (Million Baht)
purchase Interest
income, VAT and
Deposit for loss
from customer

million Baht

Not exceed one 1,385.96 88.97 13.62 1.00
installment

Past due 2-3 installments 106.21 6.82 2.1 2.00
Past due 4-6 installments 46.63 2.99 46.63 100.00
Past due 7-12 installments 15.06 0.97 15.06 100.00
Past due over 12 3.95 0.25 3.95 100.00
installments

1,557.81 \ 100.00 H
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Appropriation of allowance for doubtful debt
The company's policy of allowance for doubtful debt refers to the regulations issued by
the Institute of Certified Accountants and Auditors of Thailand no. Sor. Nor. 111/2547 on the

matter relating to making allowance for doubtful debt in consumer finance business.

Aging of Hire — Purchase Accounts Receivable

As of December 31, 2007 and 2008 hire purchase and installment sales receivables
ratio - past due not exceeding one installment increased from 88.97% to 87.15%, past due
over two-three installments increased from 6.82% to 7.85%, and past due over four
installments increased from 4.21% in 2007 to 5.00% respectively.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2009 hire purchase and installment sales receivables
ratio - past due not exceeding one installment decreased from 87.15 % to 83.43%, past due
over two-three installments increased from 7.85% to 8.46% and past due over four

installments increased from 5.00% to 8.12% respectively.

Allowance for doubtful debt

As of December 31, 2009 allowance for doubtful debt is 186.30 million Baht
increased from 135.16 million Baht or 37.83% in the year 2008 due to the decreasing in past
due not exceeding one installment which the portion is more than 83% of total hire purchase
and installment sales receivable. And the ratio of allowance for doubtful debt to total hire
purchase and installment sales receivable increased to 9.80% from 6.34% at the end of the
year 2008.

Liabilities

As of the end of the year 2008 the company's liabilities 1,512.64 million Baht increased
from 1,041.43 million baht in 2007, increasing amount 471.21 million baht or 45.25% due to
the loan to support business expansion. The major liabilities come from long term loans from
financial institutions.

As of the end of the year 2009 the company's liabilities 1,148.36 million Baht decreased
from 1,512.64 million baht in 2008, decreasing amount 364.28 million baht or 24.08% due to
portfolio expansion slowdown. The major liabilities come from long term loans from financial

institutions.
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Shareholders’ Equity

As of the end of the year 2008 the shareholders' equity increased to 764.82 million Baht
comprise of issued and paid-up capital 270 million Baht, share premium 148.20 million Baht and
retained earning 346.62 million Baht, totally increased from the year 2007 204.37 million Baht
or 36.47%. This was due to the capital increase 45 million shares allocated to existing
shareholders 9 million shares of par value 5 Baht each, share premium increased 70.20 million
Baht and retained earnings increased 89.16 million Baht so the company has total retained
earning 309.80 million Baht after paid dividend for the year 2007 operating result 81 million
Baht and paid for dividend for the operating result of the first half of the year 2008 amount
13.50 million Baht.

As of the end of the year 2009 the shareholders' equity increased to 914.18 million Baht
comprise of issued and paid-up capital 280.84 million Baht, share premium 187.66 million Baht,
warrant to buy ordinary share 4.43 million Baht and retained earning 441.25 million Baht.
Totally increased from the year 2008 149.35 million Baht or 19.53%. This was due to the
exercising of warrant resulting issued and paid-up capital increased 10.84 Baht and share
premium increased 39.46 million Baht. Including retained earning which increased 94.63
million Baht from the net profit 181.13 million Baht deduct interim dividend payment from the
1Q - 3Q of the year 2009 amount 86.50 million Baht.

Liquidity

As of the year 2008, the net cash flows used in operating activities 473.75 million Baht
by received Income from operating activities before changes in operating assets and liabilities
614.91 million Baht and for portfolio expansion resulting motorcycle hire purchase receivable
increased 756.56 million Baht and assets foreclosed increased 180.39 million Baht. The
company has net cash flows used in investing activities amount 17.46 million Baht from the
acquisitions of property, plant and equipment 17.64 million Baht. The company has net cash
flows from financing activities 493.19 million Baht from the cash receipt from long-term loans
1,575 million Baht, repayment of long term loans 1,126.41 million Baht. So net increased in

cash and cash equivalents for the year 2008 is 1.97 million Baht.
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As of the year 2009, the net cash flows received from operating activities 401.14 million
Baht by received Income from operating activities before changes in operating assets and
liabilities 655.90 million Baht and for portfolio expansion slowdown resulting motorcycle hire
purchase receivable decreased 106.81 million Baht and assets foreclosed increased 211.27
million Baht. The company has net cash flows used in investing activities amount 6.42 million
Baht from the acquisitions of property, plant and equipment 17.64 million Baht. The company
used net cash flows for financing activities 395.87 million Baht by repayment of long term loans
864.44 million Baht and had cash receipt from long-term loans 620 million Baht. So net cash
and cash equivalents decreased 1,147.59 million Baht resulting at the end of the year 2009,

cash and cash equivalents balance is 1,768.32 million Baht.

Capital Structure

The company's capital structure at the end of the year 2009, 2008 and 2007 has debt to
equity is 1.26 times, 1.98 times and 1.86 times respectively. That ratio decreased in 2009 due
to the hire-purchase portfolio expansion slowdown with the details as follow :

1. Decreasing in outsource funding which are long term loans such as bank overdrafts
and loans from the Bank, repayment as in the facility agreement with partially fixed interest
rate 6.60 — 6.85% per annum or floating rate close to MLR. The company used land and
buildings for collateral. Loans decreased from 1,512.64 million baht in 2008 to 1,148.36 million
baht in 2009, decreasing amount 364.28 million baht or 24.08%.

2. Increases in internal capital in 2009 from the increase of shareholders equity from
764.82 million Baht in 2008 to 914.18 million Baht, increasing amount 145.39 million Baht or
19.53% due to the increased of issued and paid up capital 10.84 million Baht and share
premium increased 39.46 million Baht from warrant exercise, and from an increase of retained
earning 94.63 million Baht from the net profit 181.13 million Baht deduct interim dividend
payment from the operation result 1Q — 3Q of the year 2009 86.50 million Baht
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Responsibility of the Board of Directors for Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of Group Lease Public Company Limited is responsible for the
company’s financial statement and all financial information presented in the annual report. The
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
standard in Thailand, which are based on appropriate accounting policies and careful
forecasting with prudent judge and practical for the real business operation. All material
information has been sufficiently disclosed in the notes to financial statements concerning with
the regulation of the Securities Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
Independent auditor has audited and expressed an unqualified audit opinion on those financial

statements.

The Board of Directors has established an efficiency internal control system which
provide complete, adequate and accurate accounting records, and to prevent operation risk
from other irregularities in the operation. In this regard, the Board of Directors has appointed
the Audit Committee, comprising independent directors, to be responsible for qualitative
aspects of financial reporting and internal control system. The opinion of the Audit Committee
with regard to these matters appears in the Report of the Audit Committee in this annual

report.

The Board of Directors viewed that financial statement of Group Lease Public Company
Limited as at 31 December 2009 presented transparency in the financial position which will be

useful for all shareholders and other stakeholders.

Board of Directors
Group Lease Public Company Limited
February 17, 2010
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Report of Independent Auditor
To the Shareholders of Group Lease Public Company Limited

I have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Group Lease Public Company
Limited as at 31 December 2009 and 2008, and the related statements of income,
changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management as to their correctness
and the completeness of the presentation. My responsibility is to express an opinion on

these financial statements based on my audits.

I conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. | believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for my

opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Group Lease Public Company Limited as at
31 December 2009 and 2008, and the results of its operations and cash flows for the

years then ended, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

{2 IQv—

Rungnapa Lertsuwankul
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3516

Ernst & Young Office Limited
Bangkok: 12 February 2010

146



Group Lease Public Company Limited
Balance sheets

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Current portion of hire purchase and
installment sales receivables, net

Assets foreclosed, net

Revenue Department receivable

Other current assets, net

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Pledged fixed deposit at financial institution

Accounts receivable and loans to employees

Long-term investments

Hire purchase and installment sales
receivables - long-term portion, net

Property, plant and equipment, net

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets, net

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Note

10
11

2009

1,768,317

1,040,009,933
7,391,398

39,983,983

(Unit: Baht)
2008

2,915,902

1,088,306,450
7,971,558
395,912
38,035,081

1,089,153,631

1,137,624,903

265,311 259,507
57,513 39,915
2,000,000 2,000,000
861,550,360 1,042,557,575
50,358,361 50,661,872
35,354,300 23,528,481
23,793,585 20,793,829
973,379,430 1,139,841,179

2,062,533,061

2,277,466,082

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Group Lease Public Company Limited
Balance sheets (continued)

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008

(Unit: Baht)
Note 2009 2008

Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from

financial institutions 12 25,346,459 145,000,000
Trade accounts payable 1,496,375 821,460
Current portion of long-term loans 14 746,981,184 752,226,666
Corporate income tax payable 36,760,097 33,383,335
Insurance premium payables 15,220,848 13,527,048
Accrued expenses 9,732,745 11,552,204
Other current liabilities 15,963,361 9,321,055
Total current liabilities 851,501,069 965,831,768
Non-current liabilities
Long-term loans, net of current portion 14 289,857,816 529,056,667
Cash guarantee for damage on hire purchase agreements 6,998,135 17,753,282
Total non-current liabilities 296,855,951 546,809,949
Total liabilities 1,148,357,020 1,512,641,717

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Group Lease Public Company Limited
Balance sheets (continued)

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008

(Unit: Baht)
Note 2009 2008
Shareholders' equity
Share capital 15
Registered
79,800,000 ordinary shares of Baht 5 each 399,000,000 399,000,000
Issued and paid-up
56,167,890 ordinary shares of Baht 5 each
(2008: 54,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 5 each) 280,839,450 270,000,000
Share premium 15 187,655,598 148,200,000
Warrants 13,16 4,426,422 -
Retained earnings
Appropriated - statutory reserve 18 39,954,571 36,824,365
Unappropriated 401,300,000 309,800,000
Total shareholders' equity 914,176,041 764,824,365
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 2,062,533,061 2,277,466,082
0 0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Directors
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Group Lease Public Company Limited
Income statements
For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

Revenues

Hire purchase interest and installment sales income

Other income

Total revenues

Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses
Directors and management benefit expenses
Bad debts and doubtful accounts

Loss on disposals of foreclosed assets

Total expenses

Income before finance cost and

corporate income tax

Finance cost

Income before corporate income tax
Corporate income tax

Net income for the year

Earnings per share

Basis earnings per share

Net income

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares)

Diluted earnings per share

Net income

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares)

Note

13

11

20

(Unit: Baht)
2009 2008
742,158,854 695,322,592
58,048,282 52,655,265
800,207,136 747,977,857
117,665,588 118,026,358
13,592,695 12,341,795
125,152,114 102,191,891
217,585,998 182,301,875
473,996,395 414,861,919
326,210,741 333,115,938
(84,726,200) (88,433,818)
241,484,541 244,682,120
(60,355,784) (61,011,921)
181,128,757 183,670,199
3.29 3.46
55,098,794 53,107,129
3.25 3.42
55,691,915 53,677,483

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Group Lease Public Company Limited
Cash flow statements

For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income before tax
Adjustments to reconcile net income before tax to net cash
provided by (paid from) operating activities:
Depreciation
Bad debts and doubtful accounts
Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposals of assets foreclosed
Loss on diminution in value of assets foreclosed (reversal)
Amortisation of discount on bills of exchange
Interest expenses
Income from operating activities before changes in
operating assets and liabilities
Operating assets (increase) decrease
Hire purchase and installment sales receivables
Assets foreclosed
Revenue Department receivable
Other current assets
Other non-current assets
Operating liabilities increase (decrease)
Trade accounts payable
Insurance premium payables
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities
Guarantee for damage from hire purchase agreements
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities
Cash paid for interest expenses
Cash paid for corporate income tax

Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities

(Unit: Baht)

2009 2008
241,484,541 244,682,120
7,069,310 6,297,395
125,152,114 102,191,891
(374,030) (180,766)
217,585,998 182,301,875
(5,739,715) 1,185,006
- 1,542,824
70,726,200 76,890,994
655,904,418 614,911,339
106,806,141 (756,562,252)
(211,266,124) (180,394,794)
395,912 2,002,507
(4,603,990) (9,262,934)
(2,999,190) (6,181,219)
674,915 (829,290)
1,693,800 (1,314,136)
(1,390,209) (5,628,314)
6,620,745 3,366,774
(10,755,147) (7,219,630)
541,081,271 (347,111,949)

(71,155,450)
(68,783,280)

(78,309,227)
(48,330,791)

401,142,541

(473,751,967)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Group Lease Public Company Limited
Cash flow statements (continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

Cash flows from investing activities

Increase in pledged fixed deposits at financial institutions

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable and
loans to employees

Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Increase (decrease) in bank overdrafts and
short-term loans from financial institutions

Cash receipts from bills of exchange

Repayment of bills of exchange

Cash receipt from long-term loans

Repayment of long-term loans

Cash receipt from share capital increase

Cash receipt from exercise of warrants

Cash receipt from warrant issuance

Dividend paid

Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent s

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

Supplement cash flows information
Non-cash items
Issuance of ordinary shares during the year

from the exercise of warrants

(Unit: Baht)
2009 2008
(5,804) (11,507)
(17,598) 1,565
725,390 190,037
(7,117,159) (17,643,142)
(6,415,171) (17,463,047)
(119,653,541) 123,900,962
- 30,000,000
- (130,000,000)
620,000,000 1,575,000,000
(864,444,333) (1,126,413,334)
- 115,200,000
49,861,470 -
4,860,000 -
(86,498,551) (94,500,000)
(395,874,955) 493,187,628
(1,147,585) 1,972,614
2,915,902 943,288
1,768,317 2,915,902
433,578 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Group Lease Public Company Limited
Notes to financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

1. General information

Group Lease Public Company Limited (“the Company”)is a public company
incorporated and domiciled in Thailand. The Company is principally engaged in the
hire purchase of motorcycles and its registered address is 63 Soi 1,

Tesabalnimitretai Road, Ladyao, Chatujak, Bangkok.

The major shareholders of the Company are Engine Holdings Asia Pte. Ltd.
(incorporated in Singapore) and A.P.F Management Company Limited (incorporated
in Thailand), which owns 47.90% and 32.60% of the Company’s share capital,
respectively. The parent company of the group is Wedge Holdings Company Limited

(incorporated in Japan).
2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
standards enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547, except that
International Accounting Standard (IAS) No.12 Income Taxes has been adopted

since no related Thai Accounting Standard has yet been announced.

The presentation of the financial statements has been made in compliance with the
stipulations of the Notification of the Department of Business Development dated
30 January 2009, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial
statements of the Company. The financial statements in English language have

been translated from the Thai language financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except

where otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies.
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3.1

3.2

Adoption of new accounting standards

In June 2009, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued Notification No.
12/2552, assigning new numbers to Thai Accounting Standards that match the
corresponding International Accounting Standards. The numbers of Thai Accounting

Standards as referred to in these financial statements reflect such change.

The Federation of Accounting Professions has issued Notification No. 86/2551 and
16/2552, mandating the use of new accounting standards, financial reporting

standard and accounting treatment guidance as follows.

Accounting standards, financial reporting stand ard and accounting treatment
guidance which are effective for the current year

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
(revised 2007)

TAS 36 (revised 2007) Impairment of Assets
TFRS 5 (revised 2007) Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

Accounting Treatment Guidance for Leasehold Right

Accounting Treatment Guidance for Business Combination under Common Control

These accounting standards, financial reporting standard and accounting treatment
guidance became effective for the financial statements for fiscal years beginning on
or after 1 January 2009. The management has assessed the effect of these
standards and believes that TFRS 5 (revised 2007) and Accounting Treatment
Guidance for Business Combination under Common Control are not relevant to the
business of the Company, while Framework for Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements (revised 2007), TAS 36 (revised 2007) and Accounting
Treatment Guidance for leasehold right do not have any significant impact on the

financial statements for the current year.
Accounting standards which are not effective fo r the current year

Effective date

TAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and 1 January 2012
Disclosure of Government Assistance
TAS 24 (revised 2007) Related Party Disclosures 1 January 2011
TAS 40 Investment Property 1 January 2011
2
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4.1

4.2

However, TAS 24 (revised 2007) and TAS 40 allow early adoption by the entity

before the effective date.

The management of the Company has assessed the effect of these standards and

believes that TAS 20 and TAS 40 are not relevant to the business of the Company,

while TAS 24 (revised 2007) will not have any significant impact on the financial

statements for the year in which it is initially applied.

Significant accounting policies

Revenue recognition

a)

b)

d)

Hire purchase interest and installment sales income

Hire purchase interest and installment sales income is recognised as income
over the period of payment, using the effective rate method, with income
recognised when the installments fall due irrespective of when actual collection is
made. However, recognition of interest income is ceased for receivables which

have defaulted on more than 4 scheduled installment payments.
Penalty income

Penalty income is recognised when received.

Other fee income

Fee for other services is recognised as income on an accrual basis.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on effective interest

rate.

Expense recognition

a)

Interest expenses

Interest expenses are charged to expenses on an accrual basis. Interest
included in face value of note payable is amortised to expenses evenly

throughout the term of the notes.
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4.3

4.4

4.5

b) Commissions and direct expenses of the hire purchase contracts.

The Company recognises initial commissions and direct expenses arising in
respect of hire purchase contracts as expenses by amortising them over the
installment period using the effective interest rate method, with amortisation

presented as a deduction from hire purchase interest income.

Unearned interest income is stated net of initial commissions and direct

expenses of hire purchase contracts.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly
liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to

withdrawal restrictions.
Hire purchase and installment sales receivable s

Hire purchase and installment sales receivables are stated at the net realisable
value. Unearned hire purchase interest income are deducted from hire purchase and
installment sales receivables. The Company provides allowance for doubtful
accounts at the percentage of the amount of outstanding receivables net of

unearned hire purchase interest income, based on the number of months overdue.
Assets foreclosed

These represent assets repossessed from hire purchase and installment sales
receivables and are stated at the lower of cost (which mostly comprises the net
outstanding balance) and estimated net realisable value. Allowance is made for the

decline in value of the repossessed assets.
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4.6

4.7

4.8

Investments

Investments in debt securities expected to be held to maturity are recorded at
amortised cost. The premium/discount on debt securities is amortised by the
effective rate method with the amortised amount presented as an adjustment to the

interest income.
The weighted average method is used for computation of the cost of investments.
Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

Land is stated at cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any). Depreciation of
buildings and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on the straight-line

basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 20 years
Building improvement and lease area 10 years
Furniture and office equipment 5 years

Depreciation for computers, equipment and motor vehicles is calculated by the
reference to their costs, using the sum of the years’ digits method over useful lives

of 3 - 5 years.

Depreciation is included in determining income.
No depreciation is provided for land.

Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled
by, the Company, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control

with the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly
own a voting interest in the Company that gives them significant influence over the
Company, key management personnel, directors and officers with authority in the

planning and direction of the Company’s operations.
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4.9

4.10

411

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that
property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets may be impaired. If any
indication exists, the Company estimates the assets recoverable amount. An assets
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and written down to its recoverable
amount. In determining value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by a valuation model that, based on information
available, reflects the amount that the Company could obtain from the disposal of
the asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties,

after deducting the costs of disposal.
An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.
Employee benefits

Salary, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund and provident

fund are recognised as expenses when incurred.
Income tax
a) Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts based on taxable profits

determined in accordance with tax legislation.
b) Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is calculated based on temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amounts, by using the enacted tax rate at the balance sheet date.
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4.12

4.13

5.1

The Company recognises deferred tax liabilities for taxable temporary
differences and recognises deferred tax assets for deductible temporary
differences and tax losses carried forward. The Company recognises deferred
tax assets to the extend that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which such deductible temporary differences and tax losses

carried forward can be utilised.

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews and reduces the carrying
amount of deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no larger probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be utilised.
Interest rate swap contracts

The net amounts of interest to be received from or paid to the counterparty under
the interest rate swap contracts is recognised as income or expenses on an accrual

basis.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made

of the amount of the obligation.
Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles at times requires management to make subjective judgments
and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgments and
estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures and actual results could differ.

The significant accounting judgments and estimates are as follows:
Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance
lease, the management is required to use judgment regarding whether significant
risk and rewards of ownership of the leased asset has been transferred, taking into

consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement.
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5.2

5.3

54

5.5

Allowance for doubtful accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management has estimated
the percentage of the allowance for doubtful accounts for each age of receivable on
the basis of historical statistical data, assessment of the risk associated with the
receivable, the nature of the collateral provided, and actual losses arising from such

debtors in the past, while emphasising the principal of conservatism.
Diminution in value of assets foreclose

In determining diminution in value of assets foreclose, management apply judgment
in estimating the anticipated losses on such assets, based on analysis of various
factors, including net realisable value, historical sales data, the age of the assets

and the prevailing economic condition.
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of temporary differences only to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which these
differences can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon

the likely timing and level of estimate future profits.
Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to
make estimates of the useful lives and salvage values of the Company’s plant and
equipment and to review estimate useful lives and salvage values when there are

any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment for
impairment on a periodical basis and record impairment losses in the period when it
is determined that their recoverable amount is lower than the carrying cost. This
requires judgments regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to

the assets subject to the review.
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6. Hire purchase and installment sales receivables

6.1 As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the balances of hire purchase and installment

sales receivables are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Current portion of Long-term portion of
hire purchase and installment hire purchase and installment
sales receivables sales receivables Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Normal receivables
Hire purchase and
installment sales receivables 1,646,245,667 1,753,230,203 1,145,563,571 1,383,145,496 2,791,809,238 3,136,375,699

Accrued hire purchase and installment

sales income 51,392,906 48,550,276

Less: Unearned hire purchase and

(591,543,821) (673,943,485)

(265,384,989)

(333,540,962)

51,392,906 48,550,276

(856,928,810) (1,007,484,447)

installment sales income, net

1,986,273,334 2,177,441,528

Total normal receivable 1,106,094,752 1,127,836,994 880,178,582 1,049,604,534
Terminated agreements receivables
Hire purchase and installment sales
receivables 84,505,281 71,048,139 49,268,158 47,755,719 133,773,439 118,803,858
Accrued hire purchase and installment
sales income 10,285,462 8,042,790 - - 10,285,462 8,042,790
Less: Unearned hire purchase and
installment sales income, net (29,166,648) (25,673,849) (13,305,042) (12,586,204) (42,471,690) (38,260,053)
Total terminated agreements receivables 65,624,095 53,417,080 35,963,116 35,169,515 101,587,211 88,586,595
Total receivables 1,171,718,847 1,181,254,074 916,141,698 1,084,774,049 2,087,860,545 2,266,028,123
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (131,708,914) (92,947,624) (54,591,338) (42,216,474) (186,300,252) (135,164,098)
Hire purchase and installment
sales receivables, net 1,040,009,933  1,088,306,450 861,550,360  1,042,557,575 1,901,560,293  2,130,864,025
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6.2 As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the balances of hire purchase and installment

sales receivables (net of unearned hire purchase income) and allowance for doubtful

accounts aged on the basis of due dates, are summarised below.

(Unit: Baht)
Percentage
of allowance
Hire purchase and installment set up by Allowance for doubtful Hire purchase and installment
Aging sales receivables the Company accounts sales receivables, net
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Hire purchase and installment sales receivables
Not yet due 1,582,237,016  1,781,383,209 1 15,276,234 17,149,336 1,566,960,782 1,764,233,873
Past due:
1 month 159,639,047 193,458,706 1 1,557,722 1,882,544 158,081,325 191,576,162
2 - 3 months 176,556,465 177,983,785 2 3,454,969 3,474,298 173,101,496 174,509,487
4 - 6 months 99,571,067 75,198,604 100 97,561,187 74,738,910 2,009,880 459,694
7 - 12 months 53,166,436 31,292,910 100 51,938,077 31,208,101 1,228,359 84,809
Over 12 months 16,690,514 6,710,909 100 16,512,063 6,710,909 178,451
Total 2,087,860,545 2,266,028,123 186,300,252 135,164,098 1,901,560,293 2,130,864,025

6.3 As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the future minimum lease payments receivable

under hire purchase agreements together with the present value of the net minimum

lease payments receivable are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
2009 2008
Minimum Present value Minimum Present value
payments of payments payments of payments
receivable receivable receivable receivable
Within one year 1,792,429,316 1,171,718,847 1,880,871,408 1,181,254,074
After one year but not more
than five years 1,194,831,729 916,141,698 1,430,901,215 1,084,774,049
Total minimum lease payments
receivable 2,987,261,045 2,087,860,545 3,311,772,623 2,266,028,123
Less: Amounts representing
finance charges (899,400,500) (1,045,744,500)
Present value of minimum lease
payments 2,087,860,545 2,266,028,123

6.4 The Company’s hire purchase agreements have terms of 1 - 3 years and require

settlement in equal installments.
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6.5

6.6

As at 31 December 2009, the Company had transferred rights of claim under hire
purchase agreements with outstanding balances (before net of unearned hire
purchase interest income) of Baht 4,162 million (2008: Baht 3,416 million), in order
to secure credit facilities granted by commercial banks as discussed in Notes 12 and
14.

On 30 April 2004, the Institute of Certified Accountants and Auditors of Thailand,
with the approval of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission,
stipulated an accounting guideline for the consumer finance business, whereby
recognition of revenue is to cease for accounts receivable which are overdue by
more than 3 installments. However, this accounting guideline provides an alternative
whereby, in cases where a company believes that the guideline would not be
appropriate, it is to disclose the method it uses, together with the reasons.
The Company has a policy to cease recognising revenue from hire purchase
receivables which are overdue by more than 4 installments. If the Company had
followed this accounting guideline, the amount of revenue recognised for the
years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 would be reduced by Baht 5.79 million
and Baht 3.52 million, respectively. However, allowance is fully provided for
accounts receivable which are overdue by more than 3 installments and the
cessation of recognising revenue only from hire purchase receivables which are
overdue by more than 4 installments therefore has no significant effect to the

Company’s net income for the years.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, there are outstanding hire purchase receivable
amounting to approximately Baht 77.52 million and Baht 49.46 million, respectively
for which installment payments are more than 3 installments overdue but for which

revenue is still being recognised.

Assets foreclosed

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, assets foreclosed are presented as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
2009 2008
Repossessed assets 10,769,995 17,089,870
Less: Allowance for diminution in value of
assets foreclosed (3,378,597) (9,118,312)
Assets foreclosed, net 7,391,398 7,971,558
11
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8. Other current assets

Accrued income

Prepaid expenses

Other receivable - sales of assets foreclosed

Undue input vat

Others
Total

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

Other current assets, net

(Unit: Baht)

2009 2008
6,452,584 8,470,572
24,683,521 19,307,828
10,355,071 6,532,719
863,892 898,832
155,365 2,825,130
42,510,433 38,035,081
(2,526,450) -
39,983,983 38,035,081

9. Pledged fixed deposit at financial institution

This represents fixed deposit pledged with bank for the issuance of letter of bank

guarantees for the Company, as discussed in Note 22.2.

10. Property, plant and equipment

Cost

31 December 2008
Additions

Disposals

31 December 2009
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2008
Depreciation for the year
Depreciation on disposals
31 December 2009

Net book value

31 December 2008

31 December 2009

Depreciation for the year

2008

2009

(Unit: Baht)
Building Furniture and Computers
improvement office and Motor

Land Buildings and lease area equipment equipment vehicles Total
30,079,054 38,475,893 4,729,331 19,541,274 8,043,268 14,789,767 115,658,587
299,600 4,345,791 43,501 485,355 1,922,493 20,419 7,117,159
(276,701) (561,576) (1,132,058) (1,970,335)
30,378,654 42,821,684 4,772,832 19,749,928 9,404,185 13,678,128 120,805,411
29,059,402 4,564,667 18,721,047 6,126,522 6,525,077 64,996,715
1,924,983 78,497 312,684 1,434,969 3,318,177 7,069,310
- (274,633) (560,252) (784,090) (1,618,975)
30,984,385 4,643,164 18,759,098 7,001,239 9,059,164 70,447,050
30,079,054 9,416,491 164,664 820,227 1,916,746 8,264,690 50,661,872
30,378,654 11,837,299 129,668 990,830 2,402,946 4,618,964 50,358,361
6,297,395
7,069,310

12
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11.

As at 31 December 2009, certain equipment items of the Company has been fully
depreciated but are still in use. The original cost of those assets amounted to
approximately Baht 28.82 million (2008: Baht 28.28 million).

The Company has mortgaged land and construction thereon with a total net book
value as at 31 December 2009 of Baht 29.02 million (2008: Baht 31.13 million) as
collateral for bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions and

long-term credit facilities as discussed in Notes 12 and 14.
Corporate income tax/deferred tax assets

Corporate income tax of the Company has been calculated at the rate of 25% on the
income after adding back certain provisions and expenses which are disallowable for

tax computation purposes.

Corporate income tax of the Company for the years ended 31 December 2009 and

2008 are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
2009 2008
Income tax on taxable income 72,181,603 60,050,625
(Increase) decrease in deferred income tax assets (11,825,819) 961,296
Income tax as included in the income statements 60,355,784 61,011,921

The components of deferred tax assets as presented in balance sheets as at
31 December 2009 and 2008 consist of:

(Unit: Baht)
2009 2008
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses
Allowance for doubtful accounts 49,414,055 35,966,386
Allowance for diminution of value foreclosed assets 844,649 2,279,578
Prepaid commission expenses (14,904,404) (14,717,483)
Total 35,354,300 23,528,481
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12.

13.

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from finan cial institutions

Interest rate

(% per annum)

Bank overdrafts MOR
Short-term loans from financial institutions MLR, MOR
Total

(Unit: Baht)

2009 2008

346,459 -
25,000,000 145,000,000

25,346,459 145,000,000

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, bank overdrafts and short-term loans from

financial institutions are secured by the transfer of rights of claim under hire

purchase agreements, the mortgage of land and the construction thereon and/or to

be constructed thereon in the future and motorcycle registrations as requested by

the lender.

Related party transactions

During the years, the Company had significant business transactions with related

parties. Such transaction, which are summarised below, arose in the ordinary course

of business and were concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon

between the Company and those related parties.

2009 2008
Transactions with related companies
Interest expenses - 1,542,824
Advisory fee expenses - 500,000
Transactions with director
Interest expenses 24,356 -

Directors and management’s benefits

(Unit: Baht)

Transfer pricing policy

At the rates of 9.0%,
8.8%, 8.5%, 7.0% and
MOR per annum

Contract price

At the rates of 7.25%
and MOR per annum

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company paid salaries, bonus,

meeting allowance and gratuities to its directors and management totaling Baht

13.59 million (2008: Baht 12.34 million).
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Warrants for directors and management

On 20 May 2008, the Company issued 206,300 warrants (GL-WA) to subscribe to

the Company’s ordinary shares, to be allotted to 11 directors and management. This

represents 20.6% of the Company’s warrants.

On 4 February 2009, the Company issued 2,412,996 warrants (GL-W1) to subscribe

to the Company’s ordinary shares, to be allotted to 6 existing shareholders who are

directors and management. This represents 9.9% of the Company’s warrants.

On 10 May 2009, the Company issued 118,100 warrants (GL-WB) to subscribe to

the Company'’s ordinary shares, to be allotted to 11 directors and management. This

represents 23.6% of the Company’s warrants.

14. Long-term loans

The long-term loans, which the Company obtained from local financial institutions,

are as detailed below.

Interest rate
per annum

(Unit: Baht)

Repayment condition

Balance
2009 2008

Loan agreement dated 26 February 2007
1) Credit facility No. 1 - 41,666,666
2) Credit facility No. 3 3,000,000 114,000,000
Loan agreement dated 20 September 2007
1) Credit facility No. 2 90,890,000 290,450,000
Loan agreement dated 28 April 2008
1) Credit facility No. 1 435,166,667 835,166,667
Loan agreement dated 29 January 2009
1) Credit facility No. 1 291,449,000
Loan agreement dated 22 October 2009
1) Credit facility No. 1 216,333,333
Total 1,036,839,000 1,281,283,333
Less: Current portion (746,981,184) (752,226,666)
Long-term loans, net of current

portion 289,857,816 529,056,667

At the rate of
MLR per annum

At the rate of
MLR per annum

At the rate of
1-month
THBFIX + 0.97
per annum

At the rate of
MLR - 0.5 per
annum

At the rate of
MLR - 0.5 per
annum

At the rate of
MLR - 0.75 per
annum

Twenty-four equal installments, with first
installment due on the first interest payment
date after drawing down credit facility No. 1

Thirty equal installments, with first installment
due on the first interest payment date after

drawing down credit facility No. 3

Thirty equal installments, with first installment
due on the last working day of March 2008

Thirty equal installments, with first installment
due on the first interest payment date after
drawing down loans under credit facility

Twenty seven equal installments, with first
installment due on the first interest payment
date after drawing down loans under credit
facility

Thirty equal installments, with first installment
due on the first interest payment date after
drawing down loans under credit facility

Note: Credit facility No. 2 under the loan agreement dated 26 February 2007 is bank overdraft facility as disclosed in Note 12.
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Movements in the long-term loans account during the year 2009 are summarised

below.

(Unit: Baht)
Balance as at 31 December 2008 1,281,283,333
Add: Addition borrowings 620,000,000
Less: Repayment (864,444,333)
Balance as at 31 December 2009 1,036,839,000

On 26 February 2007, the Company entered into a loan agreement with two
commercial banks to obtain long-term loan facilities of Baht 800 million. The
purposes of such loans are to repay the existing short-term loan as discussed in
Note 12 and long-term loans of Baht 100 million and for use in the expansion of
business. In order to reduce the fluctuation of interest rate risk, the Company has
entered into an interest rate swap agreement covering this loan amount, whereby a

floating interest rate is to be swapped for a fixed interest rate at 6.85% per annum.

On 20 September 2007, the Company entered into a loan agreement with another
commercial bank to obtain long-term loan facilities of Baht 500 million. The purpose
of such loans is to repay the existing short-term loan and promissory notes. In order
to reduce the fluctuation of interest rate risk, the Company has entered into an
interest rate swap agreement covering this loan amount, whereby a floating interest

rate is to be swapped for a fixed interest rate at 6.60% per annum.

On 28 April 2008, the Company entered into a loan agreement with three
commercial banks, as co-lenders, to obtain long-term loan facilities of Baht 1,000
million. The purposes of such loans is to repay the existing short-term loan and for
use in the expansion of business. In order to reduce the fluctuation of interest rate
risk, the Company has proportionately entered into an interest rate swap agreement,
whereby a floating interest rate is to be snapped for a fixed interest rate at 6.75%

per annum.

On 29 January 2009, the Company entered into a loan agreement with another
commercial bank to obtain long-term loan facilities of Baht 400 million. The purpose
of such loan is to repay the existing short-term loan and for use in the expansion of

business of the Company.
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15.

On 22 October 2009, the Company entered into a loan agreement with three
commercial banks, as co-lenders, to obtain long-term loan facilities of Baht 1,000
million. The purpose of such loan is to repay the existing short-term loan and for use

in the expansion of business of the Company.

The loan agreements contains covenants as specified in the agreements that,
among other things, the maintenance of the proportion of shareholding of the major
shareholders, dividend payment, maintenance of a certain debt to equity ratio, ratio
of hire purchase receivables more than three months’ past due to total hire purchase
receivables, ratio of total hire purchase receivables to loans, prohibition of disposal
of assets or rights of claim under hire purchase agreements and prohibition of

entering into new loan agreements.

The loans are secured by the transfer of rights of claim under hire purchase
agreements, the mortgage of land and construction thereon and/or to be
constructed thereon in the future, and motorcycle registrations as requested by the

commercial banks.

As at 31 December 2009, the long-term credit facilities of the Company which have

not yet drawn down amounted to Baht 780 million.

Share capital

15.1 Additional share subscription received from th e exercise of warrants

During the current year, the Company received additional share subscription totaling
Baht 49.86 million from the exercise of warrants, as detailed below.

Warrant Ordinary share Exercise price Amount
(Units) (Shares) (Baht/share) (Million Baht)
GL-W1 2,167,890 2,167,890 23.0 49.86

The Company registered the increase in its paid up share capital to Baht 280.84

million with the Ministry of Commerce on 3 July 2009.

As at 31 December 2009, the Company had share premium amounting to Baht

187.66 million as a result of the capital increases.
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15.2 Reconciliation of number of ordinary shares

16.

Reqistered share capital

Number of ordinary shares at the beginning of year

Increase in number of ordinary shares due to
registration during the year

Number of ordinary shares at the end of year

Issued and paid-up share capital

Number of ordinary shares at the beginning of year

Increase in number of ordinary shares due to

increase in share capital

Increase in number of ordinary shares due to exercise

of warrants during the year

Number of ordinary shares at the end of year

Warrants

(Unit: Shares)

2009 2008
79,800,000 45,000,000
- 34,800,000
79,800,000 79,800,000
54,000,000 45,000,000
- 9,000,000
2,167,890 -
56,167,890 54,000,000

As at 31 December 2009, details of the warrants, which were issued by the

Company, are as follows: -

Type of Issuance date Number of warrants Warrant Period of  Exercise price Exercise ratio
warrant Issue to of warrant original issued offer price warrant per share per 1 warrant
GL-WA Directors and employees 20 May 2008 1,000,000 3 years Baht 12 1 ordinary share
GL-w1 Existing shareholders 4 February 2009 24,300,000 Baht 0.20 3 years Baht 23 1 ordinary share
GL-WB Directors and employees 10 May 2009 500,000 3 years Baht 14.50 1 ordinary share

During the year, the movements of warrants of the Company are as follows: -

Number of warrants

Number of

Number of warrants

Type of outstanding as at Issuance of warrants  warrants exercised outstanding as at
warrant 31 December 2008 during the year during the year 31 December 2009
GL-WA 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
GL-W1 - 24,300,000 (2,167,890) 22,132,110
GL-WB - 500,000 - 500,000

Issuance and offer of warrants during the year

GL-w1

On 4 February 2009, the Company issued 24.3 million warrants (GL-W1) to

subscribe to the Company’s ordinary shares, at a price of Baht 0.20 each. The

warrants are exercisable at the end of every quarter for a period of 3 years from the

issuance date, in a ratio of 1 warrant to 1 new ordinary share, with an exercise price

of Baht 23 per share.
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17.

18.

On 12 February 2009, the warrants were listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand,

to be traded on Stock Exchange of Thailand commencing from 16 February 2009.
GL-wWB

On 10 May 2009, the Company issued 500,000 warrants (GL-WB) to subscribe to
the Company's ordinary shares, to be allotted to directors and employees of the
Company with free of charge. The exercise ratio is 1 warrant per 1 ordinary share at
a price of Baht 14.50 per share, and the warrants have a term of 3 years from the
first issue date. The warrants are exercisable on maturity, as detailed in the

Employee Share Ownership Plan (ESOP).

The ESOP warrants are not listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Dividend
(Unit: Baht)
Total Dividend
Approved by dividends per share
Final dividends for 2007 Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 3 April 2008 81,000,000 1.50
Interim dividends for 2008  Board of Directors’ Meeting on
21 August 2008 13,500,000 0.25
Total for 2008 94,500,000 1.75
Interim dividends for the Board of Directors’ Meeting on
first quarter of 2009 10 July 2009 47,181,028 0.84
Interim dividends for 2009  Board of Directors’ Meeting on
11 November 2009 39,317,523 0.70
Total for 2009 86,498,551 1.54

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the
Company is required to set aside a statutory reserve at least 5% of its net income
after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any) until the reserve reaches
10% of the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend

distribution.
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19. Expenses by nature

Significant expenses by nature are as follow:

(Unit: Baht)
2009 2008
Salary and wages and other employee benefits 66,446,179 61,905,341
Depreciation 7,069,310 6,297,395

20. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income for the year by

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income for the year by the
sum of the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year
plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares which would need to be
issued to convert all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The
calculation assumes that the conversion took place either at the beginning of the

year or on the date the potential ordinary shares were issued.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per
share:

Weighted average

Net income number of ordinary shares Earnings per share
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
(Thousand Baht)  (Thousand Baht)  (Thousand shares) (Thousand shares) (Baht) (Baht)
Basic earnings per share
Net income 181,129 183,670 55,099 53,107 3.29 3.46
Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares
GL-WA - - 465 570
GL-w1
GL-W3 - - 128
Total - - 593 570
Diluted earnings per share
Net income of ordinary
shareholders assuming
the conversion of dilutive
potential ordinary shares 181,129 183,670 55,692 53,677 3.25 3.42

The GL-W1 warrants for the year ended 31 December 2009, were not included as
potential ordinary shares because their exercise price exceeds the weighted fair

value during the year of the Company's ordinary shares.
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21.

22.

22.1

22.2

23.

24.

24.1

Provident fund

The Company and employees have jointly established a provident fund in
accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Both employees and the
Company contributed to the fund monthly at the rate of 3% of basic salary. The fund,
which is managed by Ayudhya Fund Management Company Limited, will be paid to
employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules. During the years
2009 and 2008, the Company contributed Baht 1,209,919 and Baht 1,015,233,

respectively to the fund.
Commitments
Service commitments

As at 31 December 2009, the Company has the outstanding service commitments
which are to be repaid within one year amounting to Baht 0.30 million (2008: Baht
0.67 million).

Guarantees

As at 31 December 2009, there was outstanding bank guarantee of approximately
Baht 250,300 (2008: Baht 250,300) issued by the bank on behalf of the Company in

respect of electricity and post guarantee.
Financial information by segment

The majority of the operations of the Company involves the single business segment
of hire purchase of motorcycles, and is carried on in a single geographic area,
Thailand. As a result, all revenues, operating income and assets as reflected in
these financial statements pertain to the aforementioned industry and geographic

area.
Financial instruments
Financial risk management

The Company's financial instruments principally comprise cash and cash
equivalents, hire purchase and installment sales receivables, pledged fixed deposit
at financial institution, accounts receivable and loans to employees, long-term
investments, bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions and
long-term borrowings. The financial risks associated with these financial instruments

and how they are managed is described below.
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Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to hire purchase and
installment sales receivables. The Company manages the risk by adopting
appropriate credit control policies and procedures. In addition, the Company does
not have high concentration of credit risk since it has a large customer base.
Therefore, the Company does not expect to incur material financial losses in excess
of the allowance for doubtful accounts it has already provided.

Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its deposits with
financial institutions, hire purchase and installment sales receivables, pledged fixed
deposit at financial institution, accounts receivable and loans to employees,
long-term investments, bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial
institutions and long-term borrowings. However, since most of the Company’'s
financial assets and liabilities bear floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which
are close to the market rate, the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal.

Significant financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2009 and 2008
classified by type of interest rates are summarised in the table below, with those
financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified based
on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date.

(Unit: Million Baht)

2009
Fixed interest rate Floating
Within 1-5 interest Non-interest
1 year years rate bearing Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 0.86 0.91 1.77
Hire purchase and installment
sales receivables, net 1,040.01 861.55 - - 1,901.56
Pledged fixed deposit at
financial institution 0.27 - - - 0.27
Accounts receivable and
loans to employees - - - 0.06 0.06
Long-term investments - 2.00 - - 2.00
Financial liabilities
Bank overdrafts and short-term
loans from financial
institutions - - 25.35 - 25.35
Long-term loans 746.98 289.86 - - 1,036.84
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(Unit: Million Baht)

2008
Fixed interest rate Floating
Within 1-5 interest  Non-interest
1 year years rate bearing Total

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 0.68 2.23 291
Hire purchase and installment

sales receivables, net 1,088.31 1,042.56 - - 2,130.87
Pledged fixed deposit at

financial institution 0.25 - - - 0.25
Accounts receivable and

loans to employees - - - 0.04 0.04
Long-term investments - 2.00 - - 2.00

Financial liabilities

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans

from financial institutions - - 145.00 - 145.00

Long-term loans 752.23 529.05 - - 1,281.28

The Company entered into interest rate swap agreements to manage risk

associated with the financial liabilities carrying floating interest. The detail of

long-term loans is set out in Note 14. The details of the interest rate swap

agreements outstanding as at 31 December 2009 are as follows:

a)

b)

During the year 2007, the Company entered into an interest rate swap
agreement for long-term loans from a local commercial bank for the period
from 20 September 2007 to 31 August 2010, as mentioned in Note 14, to fixed
rate of 6.60% per annum.

During the year 2007, the Company entered into an interest rate swap
agreement for long-term loans from a local commercial bank for the period
from 28 December 2007 to 31 January 2010, as mentioned in Note 14, to fixed
rate of 6.85% per annum.

During the year 2008, the Company entered into an interest rate swap
agreement for proportion of long-term loans from a local commercial bank for
the period from 2 September 2008 to 31 March 2011, as mentioned in Note

14, to fixed rate of 6.75% per annum.

Foreign currency risk

The Company considers itself no foreign currency risk because it has no foreign

currency transactions.
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24.2 Fair values of financial instruments

25.

Methodology of fair value measurement depends upon characteristics of the
financial instruments. For the financial instruments which are regarded as traded in
an active market, fair value has been determined by the latest quoted market price.
If however the appropriate quoted market price cannot be determined, the fair value

is determined using an appropriate valuation technique.

The Company establishes fair value of its financial instruments by adopting the

following methods and assumptions:

a) For financial assets and liabilities which have short-term maturity, including
deposits with financial institutions, accounts receivable and loans to employees
and bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions, the
carrying amounts at the balance sheet date are considered to be a reasonable

approximation of their fair value.

b) For hire purchase and installment sales receivables, fair values are the
carrying amount net of unearned hire purchase income and allowance for

doubtful accounts.

c¢) For long-term investments and long-term loans from financial institutions
carrying interest at the rates close to the market rates, fair value is the carrying

amount in the balance sheet.
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it
has an appropriate financial structure and preserves the ability to continue its

business as a going concern.

According to the balance sheet as at 31 December 2009, the Company had a debt-
to-equity ratio of 1.26:1 (2008: 1.98:1).

26. Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s authorised

directors on 12 February 2010.
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